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CoOVER STORY

As time changes, Information Technology is ever-changing and the economy is
developing by leaps and bounds, which make the current business environment
full of changes and challenges, just like the process of playing games.

Guotai Junan International Holdings Limited has professional teams in possession
of rich investment management experience and professionalism, a combination
of wisdom, experience, loyalty and persistence. Our teams map out strategies
with overall consideration amidst the changing conditions, and devise diversified
financial products and services while keeping risks under effective and
comprehensive control, thereby creating values and securing success for clients
and shareholders.
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SUCCESS

Professionalism, precision, good faith, foresight, innovation, prudence, and
courageousness in ascending business peaks and stringent risk control are not
only the objectives and requirements set by Guotai Junan International but also
our commitments to investors and clients.

Every step is marked with our preparation, contemplation, courage and wisdom.
In response to the changing market environment, our professional investment
management teams will customize financial service and products with a view
to optimizing returns for clients and investors by means of meticulous planning,
objective analysis by utilizing their rich practice experience.

Guotai Junan International has been well standing against the market turbulence
and challenges, and securing success with the consistent rigorous and prudent
operation style.
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MILESTONES

1995 1997 2001

¢ Guotai Junan (Hong Kong) e Guotai Junan Futures (Hong Kong) ¢ Online trading platform for
Limited was incorporated. Limited commenced business. Hong Kong securities was
launched.

e Guotai Junan Securities (Hong
Kong) Limited became a
member of the Stock Exchange
and commenced business.

2009

e Online trading platform for United
States securities was launched.

2008

e Completed sponsorship and IPO
fund raising in Hong Kong for
the first pilot company whose A

and B Shares were listed on the

Shenzhen Stock Exchange.

e CSRC approval on China B shares
trading qualification obtained.

2012 2013 2014

e We launched our first RQFII fund: e \We launched our first public fund e Completed the issuance of
Guotai Junan Great Dragon RMB in Luxembourg: White Fleet — offshore US-denominated
Funds — Guotai Junan Great Guotai Junan Sunrise Emerging corporate bonds for offshore
Dragon China Fixed Income Fund. Market Fixed Income Total investment for our controlling

Return Fund. shareholder Guotai Junan.

e Completed conversion of the
B share into H share and the
listing of H share on the Main

Board of the Stock Exchange of
a Chinese enterprise.
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Milestones

2003 2004 2007

e Online trading platform for futures e Completed sponsorship and IPO e Qur first SFC authorized fund:
business was launched. fund raising in Hong Kong for Guotai Junan Investment Funds
the first pilot company whose — Guotai Junan Greater China
A Shares were listed on the Growth Fund was launched.
Shenzhen Stock Exchange.

2010 2011

e CSRC approval for Hong Kong e Level 1 American Depository
listing was obtained. Receipt program was launched.

Guotai Junan International
Holdings Limited was incorporated
and listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange.

Guotai Junan FX Limited
commenced leveraged foreign
exchange trading service.

e Guotai Junan International Holdings Limited issued
20 I 5 20 I 6 US$300 million Subordinated Perpetual Securities
while Guotai Junan Securities (Hong Kong) Limited

e (Guotai Junan International Asset is the sole placing agent

Management (Singapore) Pte.

Limited commenced asset Guotai Junan Capital Limited was appointed by

Guotai Junan Securities Co., Ltd. as one of the joint

management
business in sponsors in connection with its proposed offering
Singapore. of the H shares on the Stock Exchange.

Guotai Junan International has been assigned
“Baa2/Prime-2" and “BBB/A-2" rating from
Moody’s Investor Service and Standard & Poor’s
Global Ratings respectively.
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CORPORATE PROFILE

Established in Hong Kong, one of the world’s most vibrant global metropolises, Guotai Junan International Holdings Limited
("Guotai Junan International” or “the Company” or “We") serves as a bridge to connect enterprises and investors in
China and the world. The Company provides a range of innovative financial products and services to facilitate financing and
investment opportunities for Mainland Chinese and overseas companies and investors.

Guotai Junan International is the first Mainland-owned securities brokerage house with China Securities Regulatory
Commission (“CSRC") approval to list its shares through initial public offering (“IPO") on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Stock Exchange”). Established in Hong Kong in 1995, we provide our services in 5 core
business areas: (i) dealing and broking in securities, futures, options and leveraged foreign exchange, (ii) corporate finance,
(i) asset management, (iv) loans and financing and (v) financial products, market making and investments. The Company
has diversified its business lines in recent years due to rapid and successful development of loans and financing, corporate
finance, fixed income, structured products and market-making businesses, and has shifted its focus from the traditional fee-
based brokerage to wealth management with a wide range of tailored financial products and services to maximize returns for
investors. Our team of dedicated professionals, who have in-depth knowledge and understanding of both China and Hong
Kong capital markets, has established a solid reputation for providing high quality financial services and tailored financial
products to investors in Hong Kong, China and across the world.

By means of a sophisticated online platform, we provide our clients with comprehensive services on global securities,
derivative and leveraged foreign exchange trading, IPO subscriptions, margin financing, stock quotes, market news and
research reports, etc. Our powerful online trading tools, including mobile application, support on-line trading in 8 major global
stock markets and over 20 futures and options markets, as well as leveraged forex trading in 8 major currency pairs and 21
associated combinations.

The Company operates an effective risk management system for all lines of business to minimize risks and maximize returns
for shareholders and investors. In 2016, Guotai Junan International has been assigned “Baa2/Prime-2"” and “BBB/A-2" rating
from Moody's Investor Service and Standard & Poor’s Global Ratings respectively. Guotai Junan International was also
named as “Securities House of the Year 2016" by Asia Risk Magazine. Despite turbulence in stock market and economic
slowdown in recent years, Guotai Junan International has reported steady growth in profits, outperforming competitors with
a double-digit return on equity from 2012 to 2016.

Our controlling shareholder, Guotai Junan Securities Co., Ltd. (“Guotai Junan”) (Shanghai Stock Exchange stock code:
601211) is one of the China’s largest securities houses, predominantly owned by Shanghai International Group Co, Ltd.
Backed by parent company'’s strong support in respect of brand name, client network and significant capital, we play a major
role in the international growth strategy of Guotai Junan, serving as the gateway for its international expansion.

Looking into the future, we will continue to expand and invest in our existing platforms and customer profiles, and become
a major regional financial services and products conglomerate. With our effective risk management system and wide range
of financial services and innovative products, we will commit ourselves to serve clients with integrity, client focus, expertise
and innovation.
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

For the year ended 31 December

2016 2015 Change
HK$'000 HK$'000 %

Fee and commission income
— brokerage 393,000 719,945 -45.4%
— corporate finance 456,649 281,447 62.3%
— asset management 28,487 53,092 -46.3%
Income from loans and financing 1,297,278 1,076,018 20.6%
Gain from financial products, market making and investments 343,773 146,106 135.3%
Revenue 2,519,187 2,276,608 10.7%
Profit for the year 1,026,087 1,015,433 1.0%
Profit attributable to ordinary equity holders of the Company 969,139 1,013,541 -4.4%
Basic earnings per share (HK cents) 141 14.9 -5.4%
Diluted earnings per share (HK cents) 13.9 14.6 -4.8%
Dividend per share (HK cents) 7.5 7.5 0%
Equity per ordinary share (HK$) (Note) 1.18 1.1 6.3%

2016 Revenue and profit mix

® Asset management

1% / 0%

® Corporate finance

18% / 12%

® Brokerage

16% / 7%

****** Revenue mix (outer circle)
- - - - Profit mix (inner circle)

® Loans and financing
51% / 57%

® Financial products,
market making and investments
14% / 24%

Note:

Based on 6,902,496,742 shares (2015: 6,857,378,801 shares) as
at 31 December 2016, being 6,965,301,142 shares issued and
fully paid less 62,804,400 shares held under the Company’s share
award scheme (2015: 6,934,308,201 shares issued and fully paid
less 76,929,400 shares held under the Company's share award
scheme).
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the published results and assets and liabilities of the Group for the last five financial years is set out below:

For the year ended 31 December

2016 2015 2014 2013 2012

HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

Revenue and other income 2,521,795 2,278,507 1,661,041 1,139,368 790,740

Profit before tax 1,188,607 1,168,122 929,216 619,526 355,402

Profit for the year 1,026,087 1,015,433 801,915 537,758 307,150
Profit attributable to ordinary equity holders

of the Company 969,139 1,013,541 799,791 536,398 307,003

Revenue and other income

(HK$mil)
2,522
2500 2,279
2000 x
1,661
1500
1,139
1000 791 x
500 x
o L
2012 2013 2014 2015 2016
Profit attributable to ordinary equity holders of the company
(HKSmil)
1200
1,014
969
1000
800
800
600 536 x
400 307 x
200 x
: L
2012 2013 2014 2015 2016
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Assets and Liabilities

Financial Summary

As at 31 December

2016 2015 2014 2013 2012
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Loans and advances to customers 14,538,144 12,375,857 9,099,164 6,005,392 3,058,102
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 5,888,774 2,197,965 1,353,089 983,717 482,220
Financial products 7,424,551 2,429,123 - - -
Receivable from reverse repurchase agreements 480,782 509,695 - - -
Derivative financial instruments 122,001 24,952 1,766 - -
Cash and cash equivalents 1,964,398 2,408,666 889,286 485,295 384,554
Client trust bank balances 12,400,917 14,662,991 9,009,909 7,966,841 5,883,941
Other current assets 1,671,466 2,199,578 1,130,166 1,020,404 1,130,404
Other non-current assets 509,712 520,608 521,501 525,092 547,516
Total assets 45,000,745 37,329,435 22,004,881 16,986,741 11,486,737
Bank borrowings (8,911,433) (7,855,662) (4,462,719) (3,386,113) (739,820)
Debt securities in issue (5,823,241) (2,358,088) (171,123) (324,706) (86,000)
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss (3,485,520) (505,340) - - -
Obligations under repurchase agreements (930,958) (400,517) - - -
Derivative financial instruments (130,083) (29,766) (1,766) - -
Other liabilities (15,185,676) (18,544,805) (10,304,059) (9,328,605) (7,261,152)
Non-controlling interests (11,951) (11,693) (9,801) (7,677) (6,317)
Shareholders’ fund 10,521,883 7,623,564 7,055,413 3,939,640 3,393,448
Asset Structure
(HKSmil)
50,000 45,001
45,000
40,000 37.329
35,000
30,000
25[000 22,005
20,000 16,987
15,000 11,487
10,000 /
5,000
0
2012 2013 2014 2015 2016
e Other non-current assets e Other current assets e Client trust bank balances e Cash and cash equivalents
e Financial products e Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss ¢ | oans and advances to customers
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Dear Shareholders,

| am pleased to report to you that the Group’s operating results outperformed the market and its peers for the financial year
of 2016, despite of the high volatility of the market and multiple events of “Black Swans”. Earnings maintained the good
momentum of growth with slight increase recorded as compared with the corresponding period of last year, and our financial
indicators such as return on equity of ordinary equity holders and growth rate of earnings kept leading the industry.

For the year ended 31 December 2016, profit after tax of the Group recorded a slight growth of 1% from 2015 to HK$1.026
billion during the financial year, reaching a new historical high level. The Board of Directors has recommended the payment
of a final dividend of HK$0.045 per share. Together with the interim dividend of HK$0.03 per share, the aggregate dividend
for the year will be HK$0.075 per share.

The Group achieved a steady growth in a volatile market environment under our profound risk management skill. In 2016,
the Company was recognised as the “Securities House of the Year” in “Asia Risk Management Awards 2016" by Asia
Risk, an authoritative magazine in the field of risk control, fully reflecting the Company’s leading positions in the industry and
prominent core competitiveness.

Results Review

2016 was a year of roller-coaster movement in the capital market of Hong Kong. Against the market challenges, the Group
stood firm and achieved fruitful results. Due to the combined impact of the circuit breaking mechanism incident in A share
market and the increasing outflow of liquidity resulted from expected interest rate hike in US, Hong Kong securities market
was under strong downside pressure. In 2016, the daily average turnover amount decreased YoY by 37%; funds raised
through IPOs reduced YoY by 26%; gross proceeds reduced YoY by 56%. The revenue and profit in brokerage industry of
Hong Kong has significantly decreased.

Faced with difficulties, the Group had increased resources in corporate finance, fixed income, loans and financing, financial
products and market making business, and received rewarding results. Investment bank business of the Group had been
strengthened. In primary market, we completed 21 IPO projects by which newly listed companies raised a fund over HK$57
billion. In secondary market, the fund raised was more than HK$2.7 billion. Upon completion of 47 bond issue projects, we
assisted corporations on fund raising in a total of over HK$85 billion in the debt capital market. For brokerage and margin loans
business, the Group had been expanding customer base by leveraging its professional knowledge of and reputation in both
China and Hong Kong capital markets, resulting in a sharp increase in market share in brokerage business and a remarkable
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Chairman’s Statement

growth in the average balance and interest income of margin loans for the year. During the period, the revenues from financial
products and market making business had a faster pace of growth and had a noticeable contribution to the Group. In order
to maintain stable profit and sustainable growth while pursuing higher revenue, the Group would continue to strengthen cost
and expenses management.

Under the backdrop of downside in peers performance, the Company achieved steady growths on account of the high
priority on risk management rooted in our strategy of business development and management culture since the Group's
incorporation. In 2016, in response to complicated and changing market environments, we increased our risk control capacity
by implementation of comprehensive risk management frameworks, rules and systems at the Group level. During the year,
Moody's and Standards & Poor’s rated the Group as “Baa2/Prime-2" and “BBB/A-2" respectively. The ratings represented
high recognitions and appreciations of the rating agencies on the Group’s adoption of prudent risk management, low risk
orientation and steady operational strategy.

According to the analysis of loan-to-value ratio and cost of debt capital, the improvement of risk control management had
effectively reduced the Group’s Weighted Average Cost of Capital (WACC). The tactical value of strategy of increasing risk
neutral income had been materialized in the form of lowered revenue volatility and strengthened profit stability.

Outlook

Looking ahead in 2017, the US dollar will remain on the track of interest rate hike, and will maintain its upward trend in the
middle term regardless of the short-term readjustment driven by Trump Administration’s export promotion policy, imposing
the liquidity outflow impact on Hong Kong, mainland China and other emerging markets. Moreover, the global market is
expected to undergo more volatility in 2017 due to the expanding trade frictions between China and the United States since
Donald Trump took office, the unclear impact from the follow-up development of Brexit and the unpredictable outcomes of
the presidential elections of France and Germany.

After the 19th National Congress is concluded, the economy of the mainland China will hopefully bottom out. However, its
economic growth rate will be affected by the shifts of American policy and other external factors. It is expected that China's
monetary policy will remain prudent and neutral. And its proactive fiscal policy is an important option for the policymakers. In
general, we hold a prudent and optimistic view about the prospect of China’'s economic growth.

In 2017, our business will witness more growth opportunities coming from three factors: the rising financing demand
brought by overseas mergers and acquisitions and international development of the Mainland enterprises, Chinese residents’
growing demand for overseas assets allocation and the rapid implementation of the government’s One Belt and One Road
Strategy. As a large-scale overseas business platform of Guotai Junan Securities Co.,Ltd., we have strong support from the
parent company. We will take the opportunity of IPO for H shares of parent company in Hong Kong to further strengthen
our own cross-boarder investing and financing services, and strive to explore the international emerging markets such as
the Southeast Asia market in addition to enriching our services in Hong Kong market. Furthermore, we will improve our
comprehensive ability in financial services in order to provide diversified financial products and high-quality financing solutions
for our corporate, institutional and individual clients.

Dear shareholders, in 2017, we will continue to capitalise on our core advantages in risk management system, trading
platform, professional personnel and innovation, and devote ourselves to further expanding our customer base, enriching
product portfolio, further improving our services, and optimising income structure with a view to create more values for our
shareholders.

Dr. YIM Fung, JP
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
Guotai Junan International Holdings Limited

17 February 2017
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Result and Overview
Group achieved a profit after tax of HK$1,026.1 million

(2015: HK$1,015.4 million) for the year ended 31 December

I ( l ' S S I O N & 2016, representing a slight increase of 1.0% as compared
review, the Group's financial products, market making and

ANALYS I S investments business, corporate finance business and

loans and financing business became the growth drivers,

resulting an increase in the corresponding income by

I ANAG E M E N I We are pleased to report to our shareholders that the
to the corresponding year of 2015. During the year under
135.3%, 62.3%, and 20.6% respectively.

The Board of the Company has proposed a payment of
final dividend of HK$0.045 per share for the year ended
31 December 2016. Together with the interim dividend
of HK$0.03 per share, the dividend declared for the year
amounts to a total of HK$0.075 per share.

Market review
Macro environment

2016 was characterized by spikes of uncertainty which
significantly impacted the market performance and
confidence. Global events, such as the US presidential
election and the Brexit, created uncertainties and increased
volatility of the global financial market, resulted in the
divergence of the market performance between the US
and the rest of the world. In US, there were improvement
in GDP growth rate and unemployment figures. The stock
market preformed well and the Dow Jones Industrial
Average Index went up by 13.4% to 19,762. In
December last year, after the US presidential election,
the US Federal Open Market Committee announced
the increase of interest rate by 0.25%. In Europe,
the pace of economic recovery remained slow. The
refugee problem created burden to countries within
the region. The Brexit Referendum voted for UK's
exit and the Constitutional Referendum in Italy caused
tension in the financial market.



Management Discussion and Analysis

In China, the Central Government was facing a number of issues, including the slowdown of the economic growth,
weakening consumption power, property price inflation and the weak performance of the financial markets. The Renminbi
("RMB") has been depreciated by around 7% against US dollar during the year. In order to control the outflow of RMB, the
People’s Bank of China ("PBOC") has introduced a number of measures while at the same time encouraging the inflow of
the RMB. In addition, the Chinese regulators introduced various measures in strengthening the regulatory supervision over
the financial market.

Markets

In 2016, the Hong Kong stock market was on roller coaster. The Hang Seng Index dropped significantly at the beginning of
2016, and subsequently recovered in the second and the third quarters. As at the end of 2016, the Hang Seng Index closed
at 22,001, representing a year-on-year increase of 0.4%. However, the average daily turnover of the Hong Kong stock market
dropped to HK$66.9 billion, a decrease of 36.6% when compared with HK$105.6 billion in 2015. The poor market sentiments
also affected the IPO market in Hong Kong where there were only 126 newly listed companies in 2016, a decrease of 8.7 %
when compared with 138 newly listed companies in 2015.

Business review

The Group's businesses include brokerage, corporate finance, asset management, loans and financing as well as financial
products, market making and investments. During the year of 2016, the performance of the Group's business was diversed.
While brokerage and asset management businesses were affected by the frustrating market conditions and the exceptionally
high comparative base figures of last year, other business segments’ performances were outstanding. The revenue of
the Group increased by 10.7% to HK$2,519.2 million (2015: HK$2,276.6 million) for the year ended 31 December 2016. A
breakdown of the revenue has been listed below:

For the year ended 31 December

2016 2015

HK$'000 % HK$'000 %

Fee and commission income
— brokerage 393,000 15.6 719,945 31.6
— corporate finance 456,649 18.1 281,447 12.4
— asset management 28,487 1.2 53,092 2.3
Income from loans and financing 1,297,278 51.5 1,076,018 47.3
Gain on financial products, market making and investments 343,773 13.6 146,106 6.4
Revenue 2,519,187 100.0 2,276,608 100.0
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Brokerage

2016 was a tough year for brokerage business. After the market crash in the middle of 2015, the year started with the circuit
breaking incident in China which caused both the China and Hong Kong stock markets to crash again. Market competition
from mainland peers became furious as there was increasing number of mainland Chinese players entering into the Hong
Kong securities industry. Most of them were looking for cross-border business opportunities. In addition, the tightening of
currency outflow in mainland China created barrier for mainland investors in doing offshore investments. With tremendous
difficulties in front of the Group, the brokerage revenue of the Group decreased by 45.4% to HK$393.0 million (2015:
HK$719.9 million). The breakdown of the revenue of brokerage business is set out below:

For the year ended 31 December

2016 2015
HK$°000 % HK$'000 %
Securities 301,318 76.7 628,792 87.3
Futures and options 44,084 11.2 42,946 6.0
Handling income 36,396 9.3 39,085 5.4
Leveraged foreign exchange 2,068 0.5 2,363 0.3
Financial planning and insurance products 9,134 2.3 6,759 1.0
393,000 100.0 719,945 100.0

Although brokerage income is directly affected by market activities, we consider that the expansion of client base is crucial to
the success of the business. Investment conferences were regularly organized to expand our clientele and we successfully
recruited over 10,000 new clients for the year ended 31 December 2016. A reliable and efficient online trading system is
crucial for the expansion of our business, especially for retail clients. During the year under review, 77% of the brokerage
commission was executed through our online trading system and 71% of the brokerage commission was generated from
individual investors.

The volatility of the stock market enhanced the turnover in futures and options during the year ended 31 December 2016.
The brokerage income from futures and options increased by 2.6% to HK$44.1 million (2015: HK$42.9 million) for the year
ended 31 December 2016. The income from leveraged foreign exchange was HK$2.1 million (2015: HK$2.4 million) for the
year ended 31 December 2016, representing a decrease of 12.5% as compared to last year.

We commit to develop the financial planning and insurance products services for our clients through co-operating with other
experienced market participants. The income from financial planning and insurance products services increased by 35.1% to
HK$9.1 million (2015: HK$6.8 million) for the year ended 31 December 2016.

The handling income from the brokerage business dropped by 6.9% to HK$36.4 million (2015: HK$39.1 million) for the year
ended 31 December 2016.
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Corporate Finance

Corporate finance business was one of the focus of our businesses in 2016. During the year, the revenue from corporate
finance business increased by 62.3% to HK$456.6 million (2015: HK$281.4 million). Our corporate finance business covers
debt capital markets, equity capital markets and consultancy and financial advisory services. A breakdown of the revenue for
corporate finance business is set out below:

For the year ended 31 December

2016 2015
HK$'000 % HK$'000 %
Placing, underwriting and sub-underwriting commission
— debt capital markets 250,249 54.8 63,583 22.6
— equity capital markets 113,180 24.8 121,844 43.3
Consultancy and financial advisory fee 93,220 20.4 96,020 34.1
456,649 100.0 281,447 100.0

We endeavor to provide a range of high-quality advisory services on corporate transaction as well as debt and equity capital
markets services to Hong Kong, China and international clients. Our corporate finance advisory services include acting as
sponsor in the application for the listing of securities in the Main Board and the GEM Board in Hong Kong and the provision
of corporate finance and compliance advisory services. The debt and equity capital market services provide a variety of
distribution channels including underwriting and placements in primary and secondary markets.

In 2016, due to the strong demand from both corporate issuers and investors, the Hong Kong debt capital market activities
were very active. During the year, we have participated in 47 debt issue exercises in Hong Kong (2015: 19 debt issue
exercises), and assisted corporates to raise HK$85.4 billion through the Hong Kong debt capital market. The income from
debt capital markets increased by 293.6% to HK$250.2 million (2015: HK$63.6 million) for the year ended 31 December
2016.

The equity capital market activities in Hong Kong were very weak during 2016. There were only 126 newly listed companies
during the year, a decrease of 8.7% when compared with the 138 newly listed companies in 2015. Funds raised through IPOs
for the year ended 31 December 2016 was HK$194.8 billion, a decrease of 26.0% when compared with HK$263.1 billion
in 2015. Total funds raised in the Hong Kong equity capital market was only HK$486.7 billion, a decrease of 56.4% when
compared with HK$1,115.6 billion in 2015.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, we acted as the sponsor for 8 IPOs, bookrunner for 19 IPOs, the sub-underwriter
for 1 IPO and lead manager for 1 IPO in the primary market. In the secondary market, we acted as placing agent for 9 placing
exercises. We assisted corporations to raise a total of more than HK$57.1 billion and HK$2.7 billion respectively in primary
and secondary markets in Hong Kong (2015: HK$28.3 billion and HKB.7 billion respectively). However, our income from equity
capital market activities dropped by 7.1% to HK$113.2 million in 2016 (2015: HK$121.8 million).

During the year under review, we were appointed as financial advisor for 24 financial advisory projects and as compliance
advisor for 42 projects. The income generated from consultancy and financial advisory services slightly dropped by 2.9% to
HK$93.2 million (2015: HK$96.0 million) for the year ended 31 December 2016.
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Asset Management

We provide a series of asset management services including portfolio management, investment advice and transaction
execution to individual clients, private and public funds. Income from asset management business decreased by 46.3% to
HK$28.5 million (2015: HK$53.1 million) for the year ended 31 December 2016.

Loans and Financing

Our loans and financing business has been our growth driver since the listing of the Group in 2010. Despite the poor market
conditions, the income from our loans and financing activities increased by 20.6% to HK$1,297.3 million (2015: HK$1,076.0
million) for the year ended 31 December 2016. A breakdown of the revenue of loans and financing business is set out below:

For the year ended 31 December

2016 2015

HK$°000 % HK$'000 %

Margin loans 1,106,342 85.3 924,121 85.9
Term loans 72,993 5.6 39,350 3.7
Securities borrowing and lending 19,316 15 26,549 2.5
PO loans 199 0.0 5,684 0.5
Reverse repurchase agreements 461 0.0 167 0.0
Banks and others 97,967 7.6 80,147 7.4
1,297,278 100.0 1,076,018 100.0

Due to the tightening of the liquidity outflow of RMB, mainland China investors preferred to increase the leverage when
making offshore investments. The average margin loan balance significantly increased by 22.0% to HK$13,350.1 million
(2015: HK$10,944.3 million) while the income from margin loan increased by 19.7% to HK$1,106.3 million (2015: HK$924.1
million).

Other than margin loan business, the Group also engaged in other term loan business to satisfy our customers’ other
financial needs, including the provision of merger and acquisition financing. The income from term loan increased by 85.5%
to HK$73.0 million (2015: HK$39.4 million).

The Group also engaged in the securities borrowing and lending business. The interest income from securities borrowing and
lending decreased by 27.2% to HK$19.3 million (2015: HK$26.5 million) for the year ended 31 December 2016.

Financial products, market making and investments

The Group holds financial assets for business development, provision of sophisticated financial products, and market
making. After the market crash in the middle of 2015, investors’ risk appetite changed and they looked for risk adverse
investment products with acceptable level of leverage. The Group tailor-made financial products according to clients’
needs and risk appetite. As a result, the income from financial products business increased by 237.9% to HK$116.1 million
(2015: HK$34.4 million). The Group also engaged in debt and ETF market making services so as to facilitate the liquidity
for corporate debts and ETFs. During the year, the income from market making services increased by 27.8% to HK$131.1
million (2015: HK$102.6 million). The Group also invests for the purpose of supporting the development of corporate finance
and institutional businesses. During the year, the income from investments was HK$96.6 million (2015: HK$9.2 million),
representing an increase of 951.1%.
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Results of Financial Position
The Group's total assets increased by 20.6% to HK$45,000.7 million (2015: HK$37,329.4 million) as at 31 December 2016.
The Group's total liabilities increased by 16.1% to HK$34,466.9 million (2015: HK$29,694.2 million) as at 31 December 2016.

The equity attributable to holders of ordinary shares increased by 7.2% to HK$8,175.2 million (2015: HK$7,623.6 million) as
at 31 December 2016. The leveraged ratio (defined as total assets less accounts payable to clients divided by total equity)
increased by 5.9% to 3.07 times (2015: 2.90 times) as at 31 December 2016.

Liquidity, Financial Resources and Capital Structure

As at 31 December 2016, the net current assets of the Group increased by 17.3% to HK$11,854.2 million (2015:
HK$10,106.8 million). The Group's current ratio was 1.37 times as at 31 December 2016 (2015: 1.38 times).

In order to provide resources for the expansion of the Group's business and to strengthen its capital structure, on 15 June
2016, the Company issued US$300 million subordinated perpetual securities (the “Perpetual Securities”) to a total of 5
investors, namely China Industrial Securities International Brokerage Limited, CNPC Finance (HK) Limited, China Guangfa
Bank — China Southern Fund — QDII1 - 17, Guotai Junan Financial Holdings Limited and SPDB International Investment
Management Limited. The Perpetual Securities were issued at par and the proceeds were used for the general working
capital. The Perpetual Securities bear an initial distribution rate of 4.5% per annum. Distributions are paid semi-annually in
arrear and the first distribution date was on 30 October 2016. The Company may, at its sole discretion, elect to defer any
distribution. The Perpetual Securities do not have any maturity date and are only callable at the Company's discretion on
30 April 2019 or on any distribution payment date after 30 April 2019. After 30 April 2019, the distribution rate will be reset
to 3-year US swap rate plus 8% per annum. The Perpetual Securities constitute direct, unconditional, subordinated and
unsecured obligations of the Company and are classified as equity instruments and are recorded as equity in the consolidated
statement of financial position.

The Group had a net cash outflow of HK$445.0 million (2015: net cash inflow of HK$1,519.5 million) for the year ended
31 December 2016 and the Group's bank balance was HK$1,964.4 million as at 31 December 2016 (2015: HK$2,408.7
million). As at 31 December 2016, the Group had outstanding bank borrowings of HK$8,911.4 million (2015: HK$7,855.7
million) through facilities with various banks. During the year under review, the Group has successfully renewed the Medium
Term Note Programme (the “MTN Programme”) of which both listed and unlisted notes may be issued under the MTN
Programme. Apart from the structured notes issued in relation to financial products amounting to HK$5,647.5 million (2015:
HK$1,929.0 million), the notes outstanding as at 31 December 2016 was HK$175.7 million (2015: HK$429.0 million). The
gearing ratio (defined as bank and other borrowings to total equity) was 0.86 times as at 31 December 2016 (2015: 1.09
times). Taking into account of the unutilized facilities from various financial institutions and the significant un-issued portion
of the MTN Programme, we believe our operating cash flow remains adequate to finance our recurring working capital
requirements as well as any investment opportunities that may arise in the near future.

The Group monitors its capital structure in order to ensure the compliance with the capital requirements under the Securities
and Futures (Financial Resources) Rules (Cap. 571N) for its licensed subsidiaries and to support the development of new
business. All licensed corporations within the Group complied with their respective liquid capital requirements during the year
and up to the date of this announcement.

Other than the information disclosed above, there were no other equity or debt instruments issued by the Company during
the year and at the end of the year.
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Outlook and Future Plans

Looking forward, the Group will target on the development of the high net worth individual and institutional investor
markets. We will focus on the expansion of our high net worth individual customer base, including entrepreneurs and senior
executives. We adhere to the path of sustainable development, insist on our conservative risk culture, adopt differentiated
competition strategy and steadily increase the market share of our core businesses.

We believe that an efficient and effective risk management structure, core talents and innovative ability can create values to
our business. The Group will continue to devote its best efforts to enhance the core competence and to maximize the return
for shareholders.

Material Acqusitions, Disposals and Significant Investments

For the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group had not made any material acquisitions and disposal of subsidiaries and
associated companies. As at 31 December 2016, the Group did not hold any significant investments.

Charges on the Group’s Assets

No asset of the Group was subject to any charge as at 31 December 2016 and 2015.

Operating Lease Commitments, Capital Commitments and Other Commitments

Details of operating lease commitments, capital commitments and other commitments of the Group are set out in note 36
to the financial information.

Employees and Remuneration Policies

Staff is an integral part of the success of the Company. Competitive remuneration packages are offered to employees by
reference to prevailing market rate and individual merits. As at 31 December 2016, we had 382 employees in total (excluding
our selfemployed account executives). Salaries are reviewed on an annual basis and discretionary bonus is paid on annual
basis with reference to the Group's performance and individual performance. Share options and share award have been
granted to the directors (the "“Directors”) and employees in recognition and acknowledgement of their contribution made or
to be made to the Group. Other benefits offered by the Group include mandatory provident fund scheme and medical and
dental insurance.

Risk Management

The Group has identified strategic, credit, liquidity, market, operational, legal and compliance, reputational, concentration,
unknown risks existed within our operations.

Strategic Risks

The Group faces significant strategic risks due to the challenging regulatory and competitive environments in which we
operate, in addition to the fast-paced development of new products and technologies in the financial services industry.

Strategic risk is embedded in every front line unit and other six major risk types can impact strategic risk.
We manage strategic risk through the following principles:

o We proactively consider strategic risk throughout the strategic planning process — the annual strategic planning process
specifically addresses many forms of strategic risk.

° We set strategies within the context of our overall risk appetite — our strategic plans are consistent with risk appetite.

o We track the performance of the strategic plan and analyze progress throughout the year — the executive management
team continuously monitors business performance throughout the year to assess strategic risk and find early warning
signals so that risks can be proactively managed.

e
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Management Discussion and Analysis

The strategic plan is reviewed and approved annually by the board of directors alongside the capital plan, financial operating
plan and risk appetite. Significant strategic actions, such as capital actions, material acquisitions and divestitures are reviewed
and approved by the executive committees.

Transparency around strategic risk is critical to effective risk management. Front line units provide tracking updates to
executive management on their business performance on monthly basis. Regular updates take into account analysis of
performance relative to the financial operating plan, risk appetite and performance relative to peers.

Credit Risk

Credit risk is created when the company commits to, or enters into, an agreement with a borrower or counterparty. Credit
risk is the potential loss arising from the inability or failure of a borrower or counterparty to meet its contractual obligations.
Our credit risk mainly arises from the following three sources:

° Issuer risk, we hold bonds or securities of issuing companies.
° Settlement risk, the risk of timing mismatch of securities or currency delivery versus payments.

° Counterparty risk, the counterparty to a transaction could default or deteriorate in creditworthiness before the final
settlement of a transaction’s cash flows.

Loans and financing activities

The Group has established Asset and Liability Management and Investment Committee (ALCO), which sets the total loan and
credit limits, and Credit Committee, which oversees equity margin financing business, and Risk Committee, which provides
independent supervision of all credit risk metrics and limits. Risk Management Department is responsible for providing
key inputs to margin financing policies, designing risk metrics, setting key risk thresholds, jointly approving material credit
transactions and performs an independent risk monitoring and limit overage escalation.

Members of the Credit Committee include, inter alia, the Chief Executive Officer, the Responsible Officers, the Chief
Financial Officer and the Head of Equity Financing Department. The Credit Committee has further delegated to the
Equity Financing Department to take charge in approving credit limit and margin limit of each client. The Equity Financing
Department is responsible for making settlement calls when the trades of margin clients exceed their respective limits. Any
such excess is required to be made good according to the deficiency report. The deficiency report will be daily monitored by
the Equity Financing Department. Failure to meet margin calls may result in the liquidation of the client’s positions. The Credit
Committee is also responsible for approval of stocks acceptable as margin collateral and the margin-lending ratio. The list of
approved margin collateral stocks will be reviewed and revised by the Credit Committee when necessary.

The Group also grants term loans to customers that may contain an element of credit risk. The Group minimizes such risk
exposure by performing detailed credit analysis of potential loan investment, and dedicated professionals are assigned to
oversee and monitor the performance of the loan investment.

Loans and advances to customers also include IPO loans for subscription of new shares which are normally settled within
one week from the draw-down date. Forced liquidation action would be taken if the customers fail to settle their shortfall
within specific period of tolerance after IPO allotment result announced.

For the Group's investment in debt securities, external credit rating such as Standard & Poor’'s and Moody's rating or their
equivalents are used by the Risk Management Department for managing of the credit risk exposures as supplemented by the
Group’s own assessment through the use of internal ratings tools.

For the Group's bank balances which we beneficially own, they are deposited in respectable large commercial banks. For
the client trust bank balances which are held in segregated accounts, they are deposited in authorized financial institutions in
Hong Kong.
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Brokerage

Accounts receivable from clients represents receivables from clients arising from dealing in securities, which normally had
a delivery-against payment settlement term of 1 to 3 days. The Group allows a credit up to the settlement dates of the
respective securities transactions (normally from T+1 to T+3 days). All application for the credit limit must be reviewed
by Credit Manager and approved by any member of the Credit Committee. The Equity Financing Department determines
whether forced liquidation action is to be taken against clients with overdue balances on case-by-case basis. The overdue
report is regularly reviewed by the Credit Committee.

The Group only accepts margin deposit in the form of cash for futures, options and leveraged foreign exchange trading. No
transaction is allowed to be executed if the current position of the customer exceeds its trading limit. The margin deposit
placed and the aggregate of the required margin deposit of each futures, options and leveraged foreign exchange contract is
timely monitored by the Risk Management Department. Margin call will be executed if there is a deficit in the margin deposit.
Forced liquidation of the client’s position will be executed if the customer fails to meet margin calls.

Accounts receivable from brokers and dealers are placed with large financial institutions which are governed by regulators.

Accounts receivable from the Stock Exchange and other clearing-houses and other assets which are mainly deposits placed
with the regulators are considered to have minimal credit risk.

Asset management and corporate finance

Accounts receivable arising from asset management and corporate finance services are from trade counterparties with sound
credit rating and/or reputation. The credit risk with these trade counterparties are considered to be manageable.

Impairment and provisioning policies

The Group's credit and risk management policy requires the review of individual outstanding amount at least monthly or
more regularly depending on individual circumstances or market condition. Impairment allowances on individually assessed
accounts are determined by an evaluation of the incurred loss at balance sheet date on a case-by-case basis, and are
applied to all individual accounts. The assessment normally encompasses collateral held and the anticipated receipts for that
individual account. Generally, impairment allowances will be recognised when clients failed to meet margin call requirements
and clients’ collateral are insufficient to cover their outstanding loan balances.

Liguidity Risk

Liquidity risk is the potential inability to meet contractual or contingent financial obligations, either on or off balance sheet, as
they come due. All of our operations and activities impact our liquidity risk profile. As we serve our clients’ needs by providing
products or services across legal entities, we accept liquidity risk related to the asset or liabilities associated with client
transactions, including both funded and contingent obligations.

ALCO is the primary body to supervise the liquidity risk while Finance Department performs daily monitoring and controlling
of liquidity risk

The primary objective of risk management is to ensure the company can meet all contractual and contingent financial
obligations at all times, including during periods of stress. WWe manage our liquidity position through lines of businesses and
asset liability management activities, as well as through our legal entity funding strategy, on both a forward and current basis.
We diversify our sources of funding, both short term and long term, through bank loans, perpetual bonds issuance, rights
issue, MTN program etc.

The Group's operating units are subject to various statutory liquidity requirements as prescribed by the regulators. The Group
has put in place monitoring system to ensure that it maintains adequate liquid capital to fund its financial obligations and
to comply with the relevant Securities and Futures (Financial Resources) Rules (Cap.571N). As a safeguard, the Group has
maintained stand-by banking facilities to meet any contingency in its operations.

e Il e
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Market Risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in market conditions may adversely impact the value of assets or liabilities, or otherwise
negatively impact earnings. Market risk is composed of price risk and interest rate risk.

Price risk is the risk to current or anticipated earnings or capital arising from changes in value of either portfolios of trading
positions or obligations that entered into as part of distributing risks. These portfolios typically are subject to daily price
movements and are accounted for primarily on a mark to market basis. This risk occurs most significantly from market
making, dealing, and position taking in interest rate, foreign exchange, equity, commaodities and credit markets.

In addition, the Group also faces potential credit loss due to market risk in margin financing business, futures and leveraged
FX brokerage businesses when the market comes down drastically. The Group’s exposure to underwriting commitments will
also be affected at times of market volatility.

Interest rate risk is the risk to current or anticipated earnings or capital arising from movements in interest rates.

The Risk Committee and ALCO which jointly sets risk appetites and limits, and provide oversight of balance sheet
management and investments. Risk Department performs day-to-day identification, measurement, monitoring and
controlling of aggregated market risks and reports back to Risk Committee on a regular basis.

The Group has established policies and procedures for monitoring and controlling the price risk arising in the ordinary and
usual course of business. Stress tests will be performed when necessary.

The Group assessed key exposures, setting and monitoring limits to ensure they are within the Group's risk appetite. In
securities margin financing business, the Group sets out the standard benchmark loan-to-value ratios for various stocks based
on the risk characteristics of the underlying collateral. Position or loss limits are set for fixed income market making and
trading portfolios. In futures and FX brokerage business, minimum initial margin and maintenance margin are established to
control our exposure to clients.

On a daily basis, market risk reports from all business units are produced by internal risk management systems. On a monthly
basis, Risk Management Department reports to Risk Committee on aggregated risks across all business lines, limit utilization
and overage summary, and material concentrated risks.

Operational Risk

Operational risk is the risk of loss resulting from inadequate or failed internal processes, people and systems, or from external
events. It can occur anywhere within the Group and is not limited to settlement or operations functions. Effects may extend
beyond financial losses and may result in reputational risk. An operational loss event can be associated with any of the
following seven categories: internal fraud, external fraud, employment practices and workplace safety, clients, products and
business practices, damage to physical assets, business disruption and system failures, and execution, delivery and process
management. Cyber security risk, a key emerging operational risk in financial industry, includes distributed denial of service
attack, attack against systems containing transaction records and disclosure of restricted, and confidential, material nonpublic
information via compromise of internal systems.

Since operational risk is inherent in every activity across the Group, we rely on all employees to contribute to an effective
internal control environment and manage operational risk within their roles. Operational risk must be managed by all
employees as part of our day-to-day activities. Our Risk and Control Self Assessment (“RCSA") process is established as
a primary means to engage everyone in capturing our individual business and aggregate operational risk exposure, which
entails:

° Identification of significant business activities and review of internal controls

o Reassessment of our operational risk profile given consideration to impacts from changes in the external environment
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Management level Risk Committee is the primary body to supervise enterprise operational risk. In addition, a centralized
Operational Risk Working Group (OPWG), with members from front line units, Risk, Audit, Compliance, IT, Settlement,
Finance, Legal and Human Resources, is set up as the primary contact for all operational risk issues. Certain control
departments are assigned as primary coordinator for specific categories of operational risk. At enterprise level, OPWG serves
as a cross departmental body to identification, assessment, monitoring, controlling and reporting of operational risk.

Operational risk is reported to Risk Committee. This report includes key findings from OPWG and all control departments. It
provides a panoramic view of the company’s assessment of operational risk and actionable items.

Legal and Compliance Risks

Legal risk mainly includes the financial risk and reputational risk resulting from (i) defective contracts, documentation or
transactional structures which may lead to contractual or legal claims against the Group; (ii) the inability or failure to effectively
manage litigation or other dispute resolution proceedings; and (iii) legal consequences of the Compliance Risk. These risks
can also be caused by change of law.

Compliance Risk is the risk of impairment of our integrity. It is a failure (or perceived failure) to comply with our values and
the compliance risk-related laws, regulations and standards that are relevant to the specific financial services offered by a
business unit, which could damage our reputation and lead to legal or regulatory sanctions and/or financial loss.

We manage legal and compliance risks through an integrated set of controls and processes that are responsive to external
and internal risks. Business and support units are responsible for proactive identification, management and escalation of legal
and compliance risks across the Group. Legal and Compliance Departments are responsible for setting companywide policies
and procedures and provides an independent challenge and oversight to the business and support units.

Risk Committee is the primary body to provide oversight of legal and compliance risks while Legal and Compliance functions
perform identification, assessment, mitigation and control of compliance risks.

Transparency of legal and compliance risk is critical to effective risk management. Legal and Compliance functions produce
regular report on key compliance risks which are reviewed by Risk Committee and Board of Directors.

Reputational Risk

Reputational is the potential that negative perceptions of the company’s conduct of business practices may adversely
impact its profitability or operations through an inability to establish new or maintain existing customer/client relationships.
Reputational risk is evaluated along with all of the risk categories and throughout the risk management process.

We manage reputational risk through established policies and controls in our businesses and risk management processes. In
each front line unit, reputational risk is mitigated through key activities such as:

o New product review and approval process to identify potential reputational risks
o Client selection and due diligence process to ensure all key risks are assessed before client is on boarding.

Executive Committee and Risk Committee provide primary oversight of reputational risk. At front line unit level, generally
business activities that contain the following types of elements or characteristics should be considered for appropriate
approval from Committees:

o Business activities that presents significant legal, regulatory or headline risks
o Violation of, or deviation from, the company’s policies

° Concerns about client identity, money laundering, potential criminal activity

e
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Ultimately, to protect the Group's reputation, monitoring and oversight of reputational risk is integrated into the overall
governance process, as well as the roles and accountabilities of all our employees.

Transparency around reputational risk is critical to effective risk management. We report reputational risks and key risk
indicators to Risk Committee regularly through the monthly risk report.

Concentration Risk

Concentration risk refers to any single exposure or group of similar, correlated exposures that exceed risk tolerance levels
and/or have the potential to produce losses large enough to threaten the Group’s performance, condition or reputation.
Concentrations can arise with respect to individual exposures, industries, countries, geographic regions, products, asset
classes, and any other category that fits the Group’s definition of concentration risk (e.g., tenor, currency, funding source,
market infrastructure/vendors).

The Group has multiple business lines including brokerage, margin financing, corporate finance, asset management, and
sales and trading. Typical concentrations arise from stocks or clients with margin financing and corporate finance businesses,
and issuer/industry concentration across sales and trading and asset management.

Risk Management Department regularly monitors the key and relevant concentration risks and report to Risk committee for
review.

We report on concentration risk in regular portfolio reporting. We have risk appetite and limits related to relevant and material
concentrations to ensure appropriate visibility into risks that manifest themselves across businesses or risk types at part of
our ongoing effort to ensure concentrations are effectively identified, measured, monitored and controlled.

Unknown Risk

Unknown risk refers to a situation where we are unable to identify, or not even being aware of, that we are actually taking
some risks. This is often referred to as “unknown unknowns" and requires the company to continuously review and
challenge its own identification and assessment of risks, and build up a strong risk culture which encourages open debate
and proper escalation process.

This risk is primarily mitigated through building up strong risk culture which stipulates that managing risk is everyone's job and
strong sense of ownership. We encourage open debate of all risks and effective challenge of different teams and functions.
In addition, the management committees, which assume primary responsibility for managing strategic risk, are responsible
for regularly reviewing key assumptions in identifying risks. Furthermore, internal audit function provides an independent
assessment of hidden risks across all business in auditing exercises.
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CORPORATE
(GGOVERNANCE REPORT

The board of directors of the Company (the “Board”) is committed to maintain a high standard of corporate governance
practices within the Group and has adopted various measures to ensure the maintenance of a high standard. The Company
has adopted the code provisions set out in the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code") contained in Appendix 14 to
the Rules (the “Listing Rules”) Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) as its own code of corporate governance during the year ended 31 December 2016. For the year ended 31
December 2016, except for the deviations as disclosed in this report, the Company has complied with all the code provisions
as set out in the CG Code.

The directors of the Company (the “Directors”) are committed to upholding the corporate governance of the Company to
ensure that formal and transparent procedures are in place to protect and maximize the interests of the shareholders of the
Company.

This report sets out a detailed discussion of the corporate governance practices adopted and observed by the Company
during the year ended 31 December 2016.

Board of Directors

The Board believes that a well-balanced corporate governance structure will enable the Company to better manage its
business risks and thereby ensure the Company is run in the best interests of its shareholders and other stakeholders. The
Board is primarily responsible for formulating overall strategic plans and key policies of the Group, monitoring its financial
performance, maintaining effective oversight over the management, risks management and assessment, controls over
business operations and ensuring good corporate governance and compliance with legal and regulatory requirements. The
Board members are fully committed to their roles and have acted in good faith to maximise the shareholders’ value in the
long run.
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Board Composition

The Board currently comprises a total of 7 Directors:

Executive Directors: Dr. YIM Fung (Chairman)
Mr. WONG Tung Ching
Ms. Ql Haiying
Mr. LI Guangjie

Independent Non-executive Directors: Dr. FU Tingmei
Dr. SONG Ming
Mr. TSANG Yiu Keung

Biographies of Directors, which include relationships with the members of the Board, senior management and substantial
shareholders (as defined in the Listing Rules) of the Company are set out in the “Biographies of the Directors and Senior
Management” on pages 96 to 97 of this Annual Report. The list of Directors of the Company and their roles and functions is
posted on the websites of the Company (www.gtja.com.hk) and the Stock Exchange.

Independent Non-executive Directors

The Independent Non-executive Directors are all with well recognised experience and expertise in accounting or other fields
and can provide valuable advice to the Board. They were appointed for an initial term of three years commencing from 19
June 2010 and renewed for a further term of three years in 2013 and 2016 respectively.

There is no relationship between members of the Board. Pursuant to the requirement of the Listing Rules, the Company has
received a written confirmation from each of the Independent Non-executive Directors of his independence to the Company.
The Company considers that all the Independent Non-executive Directors were independent in accordance with the Listing
Rules throughout the year ended 31 December 2016.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Dr. YIM Fung has been performing both the roles of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer since 24 August 2012. Dr. YIM
joined the Group in 2000 and has been responsible for the overall business management of the Group, he has over 25
years' experience in the securities industry. Although this arrangement constitutes a deviation from code provision A.2.1 of
the CG Code, the Directors consider that the vesting of two roles in the same person provides the Group with strong and
consistent leadership in the development and execution of the Group’s business strategies and is beneficial to the Group.
While the responsibilities of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer are vested in one person, all major decisions are either
made by the Board or in consultation with the Board members and the senior management of the Company. As there are
three Independent Non-executive Directors in the Board, the Directors consider that there is sufficient balance of power and
the current arrangement maintains a strong management position of the Company.
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Board Process

Board meetings shall be held at least four times a year and no less than once every quarter. Additional Board meetings will
be held as and when necessary.

Notice of at least 14 days is given for a regular Board meeting so as to give all Directors an opportunity to attend. Agenda
accompanying Board papers for each meeting are circulated in full to all Directors before the meeting. Senior management
members may, from time to time, be invited to attend the Board meetings for making presentation and/or answering any
queries raised by the Board.

The Company Secretary will assist the Board in setting agenda for meetings, and each Director of the Company is given an
opportunity to include any matters to be transacted in the agenda. Where any Director is considered to be having a conflict
of interest in any transactions, the Director concerned will not be counted in the quorum of the relevant meeting. Minutes
of meetings of the Board and the respective Board committees are recorded in details. All draft minutes are circulated to all
those present at the meetings for comments before submission to the chairman of the meetings for approval.

For the year ended 31 December 2016, 5 board meetings were held and the individual attendance of each Director is set out
below:

Number of
Name of Director meetings attended Attendance rate
Dr. YIM Fung 5/5 100%
Mr. WONG Tung Ching 5/5 100%
Ms. QI Haiying 5/5 100%
Mr. LI Guangjie 5/5 100%
Dr. FU Tingmei 5/5 100%
Dr. SONG Ming 5/5 100%
Mr. TSANG Yiu Keung 5/5 100%

Board meetings were held to discuss the business strategies of the Group, review financial and operational performance,
approve the annual and interim results of the Group, discuss the corporate governance and risk management matters, review
the Group's policies and practices in compliance with legal and regulatory requirements, and review the codes applicable to
directors and employees.

During the year, a meeting of the Chairman and the Independent Non-executive Directors without the presence of the
Executive Directors and the management was held to discuss and review the performance of the Executive Directors and the
management, and the adequacy of systems and controls in place to safeguard the interests of the Group and shareholders.

All Directors are entitled to have access to board papers and related materials. Where Directors hold different views in
respect of any matter discussed at a Board meeting, the minutes will record the discussions clearly. Full minutes are being
kept by the Company Secretary and such minutes are open for inspection at any time during office hours on reasonable
notice by any Director.

All Directors are entitled to seek independent professional advice regarding their duties at the Company's expense.
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Appointment and Re-election of Directors

Each of the Executive Directors and Independent Non-executive Directors has entered into a service agreement or a letter
of appointment with the Company for a specific term. Such term is subject to re-election by the Company at annual general
meeting ("AGM") upon retirement. In accordance with the Articles of Association of the Company, one-third of the Directors
or, if the number is not three or a multiple of three, then the number nearest to but not less than one-third, will retire from
office by rotation and every Director shall be subject to retirement at annual general meeting at least once every three years.
The Directors to retire every year will be those who have been longest in office since their last re-election or appointment.

Board Diversity
The Board has a board diversity policy, which is available on the Company’s website.

In order to achieve a diversity of perspectives among members of the Board, it is the policy of the Company to consider a
number of factors when deciding on appointments to the Board and the continuation of those appointments. Such factors
include gender, age, cultural and educational background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of
service.

Induction and Ongoing Development

The Company provides each Director with personalized induction, training and development. On appointment, each new
Director receives a comprehensive and tailored induction covering, among others, information about the Group's operations
and business, the roles and responsibilities of the Board and its key Committees, the Company’s governance structure
and practices, and relevant rules and regulations. On an ongoing basis, all Directors attended trainings to keep themselves
updated on the Group’s business and the latest developments to the Listing Rules and other applicable laws, rules and
regulations and to ensure the continued enhancement of their knowledge and skills. Such trainings are provided at the
Company’s expense.

Directors’ Training and Professional Development

The individual training record of each Director received for the year ended 31 December 2016 is set out below:

Type of continuous professional
Name of Director development programs

Executive Directors

Dr. YIM Fung

Mr. WONG Tung Ching

Ms. Ql Haiying

Mr. LI Guangjie

Independent Non-executive Directors
Dr. FU Tingmei

Dr. SONG Ming

Mr. TSANG Yiu Keung

> > > >

> > >

Notes: A = attending seminar
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Corporate Governance Functions

The Board is responsible for performing the corporate governance duties, including:

(@) to develop and review the Company’s policies and practice on corporate governance;

(b)  to review and monitor the training and continuous professional development of Directors and senior management;

(c)  toreview and monitor the Company’s policies and practice on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements; and
(d)  toreview the Company’s compliance with Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules (Corporate Governance Code).

During the year, the Board has reviewed and performed the above corporate governance functions.

Board Committees

Under the Board, there are 4 board committees, namely Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee, Nomination
Committee and Risk Committee. All these committees perform their distinct roles in accordance with their respective terms
of reference and assist the Board in supervising certain functions of the senior management.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee of the Board was established on 19 June 2010. The Committee comprises only Independent Non-
executive Directors:

Independent Non-executive Directors: Mr. TSANG Yiu Keung (Chairman)
Dr. FU Tingmei
Dr. SONG Ming

The Chairman of the Committee has professional accounting qualification. The Committee reviews financial information
of the Group, monitors the effectiveness of the external audit and oversees the appointment, remuneration and terms
of engagement of the Company’s external auditor, as well as their independence. The Committee will meet regularly to
review financial reporting process, certain business affairs managed by the Executive Directors in particular on connected
transactions and continuing connected transactions, if any, to review the interim and final financial statements before their
submission to the Board and the annual general meeting for approval and to review the effectiveness of the internal control
and risk management system of the Group, including the internal audit function and performance. A copy of the terms of
reference of the Committee has been posted on the Company’s website (www.gtja.com.hk) and the Stock Exchange’s
website.

GUOTAI JUNAN INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED | 2016 ANNUAL REPORT



Corporate Governance Report

For the year ended 31 December 2016, the Committee met on 4 occasions and the individual attendance of the Committee
members is set out below:

Number of
Name of Director meetings attended Attendance rate
Mr. TSANG Yiu Keung 4/4 100%
Dr. FU Tingmei 4/4 100%
Dr. SONG Ming 4/4 100%

The major work performed by the Audit Committee during the year included:

(a)

(b)

(h)
(i)

reviewed the financial results and reports of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2016 and for the six months
ended 30 June 2016;

reviewed and discussed with the external auditor to ensure that the Group's financial statements had been prepared in
accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong;

reviewed the independence and objectivity of the external auditor, the scope of audit services and related audit fees
payable to the external auditor for the Board's approval;

met and discussed with the external auditor on the audit strategy and assessment of the sufficiency of the internal
control of the Group;

reviewed the external auditor’s statutory audit plan and engagement letter;

reviewed the report of the external auditor and made recommendations to the Board for their re-appointment at the
2017 annual general meeting;

reviewed and discussed with senior management about the internal control, risk management issues and the function
and performance of internal audit of the Group, including the annual audit plan, the staffing and resources of Internal
Audit Department, the audit findings and recommendations raised in the internal audit reports, and the implementation
status of related audit recommendations;

reviewed the Group’s continuing connected transactions and external auditor’s report; and

reviewed and updated its Terms of Reference.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee was established on 19 June 2010. The Committee currently comprises 3 Directors:

Independent Non-executive Directors: Dr. FU Tingmei (Chairman)

Dr. SONG Ming
Mr. TSANG Yiu Keung
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The responsibilities of the Committee include setting remuneration policy of the Group and fixing remuneration packages of
Directors and senior management in accordance with the Listing Rules and the Articles of Association of the Company. No
Directors can determine their own remuneration packages. The Committee will meet at least once a year to discharge its
responsibilities in accordance with its terms of reference. The Committee is provided with sufficient resources to discharge
its duties. The Chairman of the Committee will report their findings and recommendations to the Board for consideration and
approval. The full terms of reference of the Committee are available on the Company’s website (www.gtja.com.hk) and the
Stock Exchange’s website.

For the year ended 31 December 2016, the Committee held one meeting to review and discuss remuneration matters of the
Group. The individual attendance of the Committee members is set out below:

Number of
Name of Director meetings attended Attendance rate
Dr. FU Tingmei A 100%
Dr. SONG Ming A 100%
Mr. TSANG Yiu Keung 11 100%

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee was established on 19 June 2010. The Committee currently comprises 3 Directors:

Independent Non-executive Directors: Dr. SONG Ming (Chairman)
Mr. TSANG Yiu Keung

Executive Director: Dr. YIM Fung

The primary responsibilities of the Committee are, amongst other things, to make recommendations to the Board on
appointment of Directors and succession planning for the Directors. When making recommendations, the Committee will
consider a number of factors of the Directors, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background
or professional experience. The full terms of reference of the Committee are available on the Company’s website
(www.gtja.com.hk) and the Stock Exchange’s website.

For the year ended 31 December 2016, the Committee held one meeting to review and discuss appointment and succession
planning of Directors. The individual attendance of the Committee members is set out below:

Number of
Name of Director meetings attended Attendance rate
Dr. SONG Ming 11 100%
Mr. TSANG Yiu Keung 11 100%
Dr. YIM Fung Al 100%
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Risk Committee

The Risk Committee was established on 17 June 2016. The Committee currently comprises 5 Directors:

Executive Director: Dr. YIM Fung (Chairman)
Ms. QI Haiying
Independent Non-executive Directors: Dr. FU Tingmei
Dr. SONG Ming

Mr. TSANG Yiu Keung

The primary responsibilities of the Risk Committee are, among other things, to advise the Board on the Group's overall
risk appetite and tolerance, risk management framework and system and other high level risk-related issues including
policies, process and controls. Prior to establishment of the Risk Committee, the Audit Committee was responsible for
reviewing the Group's overall risks. The full terms of reference of the Committee are available on the Company's website

(www.gtja. com.hk) and the Stock Exchange’s website.

For the year ended 31 December 2016, the Committee met on 2 occasions and the individual attendance of the Committee

members is set out below:

Number of
Name of Director meetings attended Attendance rate
Dr. YIM Fung 2/2 100%
Ms. Ql Haiying 2/2 100%
Dr. FU Tingmei 2/2 100%
Dr. SONG Ming 2/2 100%
Mr. TSANG Yiu Keung 2/2 100%

The major duties performed by the Risk Committee during the year included:

(a)  reviewed Risk Committee's responsibilities and approved the Terms of Reference;

(b)  reviewed and recommended to the Board for approval on the overall risk framework and appetite of the Group;

(c)  reviewed and approved Risk Framework of the Group;
(d) reviewed reports from Risk Management Department on enterprise risks;

(e)  reviewed high level risk related issues of the Group; and

(f)  reviewed and assessed adequacy and effectiveness of the Group's risk management framework and risk management

policies and procedures.
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Delegation to the Management

The management team of the Company (the “Management”) is led by the Executive Directors of the Board and has been
delegated powers and authorities to carry out the day-to-day management and operation of the Group, formulate business
policies, make decision on key business issues and exercise other powers and authorities delegated by the Board from time
to time. The Management assumes full accountability to the Board for the operation of the Group.

The Company has clear direction on the Board's delegation of powers to the Management. Some powers are reserved to the
Board, including but not limited to:

- Publication of final and interim results of the Company;

- Proposing dividend distribution to the shareholders’ meeting;

- Major issues of treasury policy, accounting policy and remuneration policy;

- Review on internal control system and risk management framework;

- Changes to major group structure or Board composition;

- Proposed transaction requiring shareholders’ approval (e.g. connected transaction, notifiable transaction, etc.); and

- Capital restructuring and issue of new securities of the Company.

Accountability and Audit
Financial Reporting

The Board acknowledges its responsibility to prepare financial statements for each financial period which give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Group. In preparing these financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2016, the
Directors have selected suitable accounting policies and applied them consistently, made judgments and estimates that are
prudent, fair and reasonable and prepared the financial statements on a going concern basis. The Directors are responsible
for keeping proper accounting records which disclose the financial position of the Group with reasonable accuracy. Prior to
the adoption of the financial statements and the related accounting policies, the relevant financial information is discussed
between the external auditor and the Management, and then submitted to the Audit Committee for review.

External Auditor

During the year ended 31 December 2016, Ernst & Young was appointed as the external auditor of the Group. The
remuneration paid/payable to the external auditor is set out as follows:

Services rendered Fees paid/payable
(HK$"000)

Audit services 2,046
Interim review 673
Tax and other consultancy services 3,760
6,479
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Internal Control

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for overseeing the Group’s risk management and internal control systems
and reviewed their effectiveness periodically through the Audit Committee and the Risk Committee. To facilitate the
effectiveness and efficient operations and to ensure compliance with relevant laws and regulations, the Group emphasizes
the importance of a sound internal control system which is also indispensable for mitigating the Group's risk exposures.
The Group’s system of internal control is designed to provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance against material
misstatement or loss and to manage and eliminate risks of failure in operational systems and fulfillment of the business
objectives. The internal control system is reviewed on an ongoing basis by the Board in order to make it practical and
effective in providing reasonable assurance in relation to protection of material assets and identification of business risks.
The Group is committed to the identification, monitoring and management of risks associated with business activities and
has implemented a practical and effective control system which includes a defined management structure with limits of
authority, a sound risk management system and periodic review of the Group's performance by the Audit Committee and
the Risk Committee of the Board. The Board has conducted review of the effectiveness of the system of internal control and
is of the view that the system of internal control adopted for the year ended 31 December 2016 is sound and is effective to
safeguard the interests of the shareholders’ investment and the Company’s assets.

Internal Audit

The Company has an independent internal audit team, which plays an important role in monitoring the corporate governance
of the Group and providing objective assurance to the Board that a sound internal control system is maintained and operated
by the management. The head of the internal audit team directly reports to the Audit Committee on audit matters. By
adopting a risk-based approach to evaluate risk level on control environment, the internal audit team makes their audit
schedules annually in consultation with, but independent of, the Management, and the audit plan is submitted to the Audit
Committee for approval. On a quarterly basis, the head of the internal audit team will present a report and express an
opinion to the Audit Committee on the internal control environment of the Group. The annual audit work plan covers major
activities and processes of the Group's operating business. Moreover, ad hoc reviews will be performed on specific areas
of concern identified by the Audit Committee and the Management. The Audit Committee has reviewed the adequacy of
resources, qualifications and experience of staff of the internal audit functions, and their training programmes and budget,
and considered that the staffing is adequate and the staffs are competent to carry out their roles and responsibilities, and the
performance of the internal audit function for the year under review was satisfactory.
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Risk Management

The Board has overall responsibility for evaluating and determining the nature and extent of the risks that the Group is
willing to take in achieving its strategic objectives, maintaining a sound system of risk management and also reviewing their
effectiveness on regular basis.

The Company has established an organizational structure with defined levels of responsibility and reporting procedures to
identify, control and report on the major risk issues. Several committees consisting of senior management members have
been set up at management level to oversee risk issues and internal controls of the Group’s daily operations. The operating
units of the Group, as risk owners, identify, evaluate, mitigate and monitor their own risks, and report such risk management
activities to such committee(s), where applicable, on a regular basis. The Board has established the Risk Committee on 17
June 2016 and has adopted its terms of reference, The Board delegated the Risk Committee to oversee the overall risk
framework and appetite of the Group and the high level risk issues, considering the Group's risk management strategies and
gives directions and recommendations where appropriate. All significant risks identified by the above-mentioned committees
at management level, material changes and the associated mitigating actions to enhance the accountability and quality of
the risk management process, etc. will be reported to the Risk Committee. The Board through this system is kept regularly
apprised of significant risks that may impact on the Group’s performance. The possible risk exposure of the Group is set out
on pages 76 to 81 of this Annual Report.

The Risk Committee has approved the Risk Framework of the Group, setting out the risk culture and governance, risk
appetite and limits, key risk types and risk management process for each type, etc.. The Risk Framework serves as an outline
of the Group's overall risk management system and process, which facilitates the Board to identify and assess the nature and
extent of significant risks, the Group's ability to respond to changes in its business and the external environment, as well as
the scope and quality of Management’s ongoing risk monitoring and related mitigating internal control measures.

Review of Risk Management and Internal Control Effectiveness

For the year ended 31 December 2016, the Board has conducted annual review of the effectiveness of the Group’s risk
management and internal control systems through the Risk Committee and the Audit Committee, covering the material
financial, operational and compliance controls, and considered the Group’s risk management and internal control systems
effective and adequate. The Audit Committee has also annually reviewed the adequacy of resources, qualifications,
experience and training programs of the Group's internal audit staff and accounting and financial reporting staff and
considered that the staffing is adequate and the staffs are competent to carry out their roles and responsibilities.

The Board is of the view that the risk management system and the system of internal controls in place for the year under
review and up to the date of issuance of this annual report is sound and effective and is sufficient to safeguard the interests
of shareholders, customers and employees and the Group's assets, and the Group has complied with the relevant code
provisions in the CG Code on internal control.

Handling and dissemination of inside information

For the purpose of handling and disseminating inside information in accordance with the Listing Rules and the Securities and
Futures Ordinance (Cap 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong), the Group has taken various procedures and measures, including
arousing the awareness to preserve confidentiality of inside information within the Group, sending blackout period and
securities dealing restrictions notification to the relevant directors and employees, disseminating information to specified
persons on a need-to-know basis and regarding closely to the “Guidelines on Disclosure of Inside Information” issued by the
Securities and Futures Commission in June 2012.
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Directors’ Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (“Model Code"”) set
out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules as its code of conduct for securities transactions by the Directors. The Company had
made specific enquiry of all Directors regarding any non-compliance with the Model Code. All Directors confirmed that they
have complied with the required standards as set out in the Model Code for the year ended 31 December 2016.

Company Secretary

The Company Secretary, Ms. FENG Zheng Yao Helen (“Ms. FENG") is an employee of the Company and is appointed by
the Board. Ms Feng is responsible for facilitating the Board’'s processes and communications among Board members, with
shareholders and with Management. She undertakes at least 15 hours of relevant professional training annually to update her
skills and knowledge.

Communication with Shareholders

The Board recognizes the importance of good communications with all shareholders. The Company encourages two-way
communications with both its institutional and private investors. Extensive information about the Company's activities is
provided on its website (www.gtja.com.hk) and in its interim report and this annual report which are provided to shareholders
of the Company in either electronic version or printed version.

Electronic Communications

Shareholders are encouraged to elect to receive shareholder documents electronically. Any shareholder may
at any time send written notice to the Company c/o the Company’s Hong Kong Share Registrar or via email at
guotaijunan.ecom@computershare.com.hk specifying his/her name, address and request to change his/her choice of language
or means of receipt of all shareholder documents. This will create environmental benefits.

Annual Report

This Annual Report is printed in English and Chinese and is available at the website of the Company. If any shareholder would
like to have a printed version of this Annual Report, please contact the Company’s Hong Kong Share Registrar at the contact
given below:

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
17M Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong
Email: guotaijunan.ecom@computershare.com.hk

If there is a dispute between the Chinese and English version of this Annual Report, the English text shall prevail.
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Annual General Meeting

The annual general meeting provides a valuable forum for direct commmunication between the Board and the Company’s
shareholders. The Chairman of the Board as well as Chairmen of the Audit, Nomination, Remuneration and Risk Committee
together with the external auditor are present to answer shareholders’ questions. The annual general meeting circulars
are distributed to all shareholders at least 20 clear business days before the meeting. Separate resolutions are proposed
at general meetings on each separate issue and voting of which is taken by poll pursuant to the Listing Rules. Any results
of the poll are published on the Company’s website and the Stock Exchange's website. All corporate communication with
shareholders will be posted on the Company’s website (www.gtja.com.hk) for shareholders’ information.

The 2016 annual general meeting was held on 19 May 2016. The attendance record of the Directors at the meeting is set out
below:

Attendance/

Number of

Name of Director general meetings
Dr. YIM Fung 11
Mr. WONG Tung Ching Al
Ms. Ql Haiying 11
Mr. LI Guangjie VAl
Dr. FU Tingmei 11
Dr. SONG Ming A
Mr. TSANG Yiu Keung il

Constitutional Documents

There was no change to the Company’s Articles of Association during the year 2016. A copy of the latest version of the
Articles of Association is posted on the websites of the Company (www.gtja.com.hk) and the Stock Exchange.

Shareholders’ Rights
Convening an Extraordinary General Meeting by Shareholders

In accordance with sections 566 to 568 of the Companies Ordinance, shareholder(s) representing at least 5% of the total
voting rights of all the members having a right to vote at general meeting may require the directors of the Company to
convene an extraordinary general meeting (“EGM"”). The shareholder shall make a written requisition authenticated by him/
her to the Board or the Company Secretary of the Company at the registered address of the Company at 27/F., Low Block,
Grand Millennium Plaza, 181 Queen’s Road Central, Hong Kong, specifying the objects of the meeting, the shareholding
information of the shareholder, his/her contact details and the proposal regarding any specified transaction/business and its
supporting documents.

If the Directors of the Company do not within 21 days from the date of the deposit of the requisition proceed duly to call an
EGM for a day not more than 28 days after the date on which the notice convening the EGM is given, the shareholder(s)
concerned, or any of them representing more than one-half of the total voting rights of all of them, may themselves convene
an EGM, provided that the EGM so convened shall not be held after the expiration of 3 months from the said date.

The EGM convened by shareholders shall be convened in the same manner, as close as possible, as that in which general
meetings are to be convened by the Directors of the Company.
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Procedures for Putting Forward Proposals at General Meetings by Shareholders

Shareholders are requested to follow sections 580 and 615 of the Companies Ordinance for putting forward proposals
at general meetings. Any number of shareholders representing at least 2.56% of the total voting rights of all shareholders
having a right to vote at the general meeting, or at least 50 shareholders of the Company having a right to vote at the general
meeting, may request in writing the Company to circulate resolutions which may properly be moved and are intended to be
moved at an annual general meeting; and to circulate statements regarding resolutions proposed at general meetings. The
requisition must be authenticated by the person(s) making it and should be deposited at the registered office of the Company
at 27/F., Low Block, Grand Millennium Plaza, 181 Queen’s Road Central, Hong Kong for the attention of the Company
Secretary where, (i) in the case of requisition for the circulation of resolutions to be moved at annual general meetings, the
requisition must be received by the Company not later than 6 weeks before an annual general meeting; or (i) in the case of
requisition for the circulation of statements regarding resolutions proposed at general meetings, such requisition must be
received by the Company not later than 7 days before the general meetings.

The procedures for nomination of Directors by the shareholders of the Company are available on the Company’s website at
http://www.gtja.com.hk.

Procedures for Directing Shareholders’ Enquiries to the Board

Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries and concerns to the Board of the Company in writing through the
Company Secretary at the registered address of the Company at 27/F., Low Block, Grand Millennium Plaza, 181 Queen's
Road Central, Hong Kong. The Company Secretary shall forward the shareholders’ enquiries and concerns to the Board and/
or relevant board committees of the Company, where appropriate, to answer the shareholders’ questions.
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Executive Directors

YIM Fung (Bl&), aged 54, is the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer of our Group. Dr. Yim joined Guotai Junan in
1993 and joined our Group in 2000 and is responsible for the overall business management of our Group. Dr. Yim has over
25 years' experience in the securities industry. Dr. Yim is a senior economist and holds a doctorate in Economics from the
Graduate School of the Chinese Academy of Social Sciences ({F Bl & RIE2[T 7T 4 FT) and a bachelor degree in Environmental
Engineering from the Tsinghua University (B X&), Dr. Yim is also a director of Guotai Junan Holdings Limited and Guotai
Junan Financial Holdings Limited which are the controlling shareholders of the Company. Dr. Yim is currently also an
independent non-executive director of Beijing Urban Construction Design & Development Group Co., Limited (stock code: 1599)
and a non-executive director of Shenzhen International Holdings Limited (stock code: 152), both listed on the Stock Exchange.
Dr. Yim is a member of the Inner Mongolia 10th and 11th National Committee of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative
Conference, PRC, and the Honorary Life Chairman of the Chinese Securities Association of Hong Kong, after being the
Chairman of the 3rd and the 4th terms of office of the said Association. Currently he is also acting as a Director of The Chinese
General Chamber of Commerce. Dr. Yim was appointed Justice of the Peace in July 2013.

WONG Tung Ching (£45), aged 45, is an executive director, the Deputy Chief Executive Officer and the head of the corporate
finance and equity capital markets divisions of our Group. Mr. Wong joined our Group in October 2000 and is responsible for
the overall business and marketing matters of corporate finance and equity capital markets business of our Group. Mr. Wong
obtained a master degree in Business Administration from the University of Lincolnshire & Humberside (now known as the
University of Lincoln) in 2001 and a higher diploma in International Trading from the Shenzhen University (Z3IIK22) in 1992.

Ql Haiying (#B/84%), aged 35, is an executive director and the Deputy Chief Executive Officer of our Group. Between 2004 and
2012, Ms. Qi worked in Shenzhen Supervision Bureau of the China Securities Regulatory Commission on regulatory supervision
of securities companies and listed companies. Ms. Qi joined Guotai Junan Securities Co., Ltd in April 2012, holding a post of
Deputy General Manager in the Compliance Department and the Strategic Management Department respectively. Ms. Qi
was appointed as executive director and Deputy Chief Executive Officer of the Company on 5 March 2015. Ms. Qi holds a
master degree of Financial Economics from London School of Economics and Political Science (LSE) and a bachelor degree of
International Economy and Trade from the University of International Business and Economics (UIBE) in China.

LI Guangjie (ZYAR), aged 48, is an executive director and the head of the sales house team of our Group. Mr. Li joined
our Group in November 2001 and is responsible for the supervision and management of the Group’s sales team. He has
over 25 years' experience in accounting, audit, taxation and asset appraisal. Mr. Li started his career at Shenzhen Jinpeng
Certified Public Accountants (FIII& 5 & =1AIE5E) as the deputy head of appraisal department. Mr. Li holds a bachelor
degree in Economics from the Shenzhen University (Z&YIIX£2) and a master degree in Economics from the Central University
of Finance and Economics (AR FI4EKE2). He is also an economist, a member of the Chinese Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (Bl & 56017 €) and a member of the Chinese Certified Tax Agents Association (1 B s i 1&EH 17 €).

GUOTAI JUNAN INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED | 2016 ANNUAL REPORT



Biographies of the Directors

Independent Non-Executive Directors

FU Tingmei (f§i5£3%), aged 50, is an independent non-executive director. Dr. Fu has extensive experiences in investment,
finance, law and business management. Between 1992 and 2003, he conducted many corporate finance transactions in
several investment banking firms based in Hong Kong, including serving as a director of Peregrine Capital Limited, and a
deputy managing director and subsequently a managing director of BNP Paribas Peregrine Capital Limited. Dr. Fu is currently
engaged in private investment business. He is currently also an independent non-executive director of Beijing Enterprises
Holdings Limited (stock code: 392),CPMC Holdings Limited (stock code: 906), Postal Savings Bank of China Co., Ltd (stock
code: 1658) (a bank listed on the Stock Exchange since 28 September 2016), China Resources Pharmaceutical Group Limited
(stock code: 3320) (a company listed on the Stock Exchange since 28 October 2016) and COFCO Meat Holdings Limited
(stock code: 1610) (a company listed on the Stock Exchange since 1 November 2016), all of which are companies listed on
the Stock Exchange. Dr. Fu graduated from the University of London with a master degree and a doctorate degree in Law in
1989 and 1993, respectively.

SONG Ming (R#&), aged 55, is an independent non-executive director. Dr. Song has over 23 years’ experience in research
of bank regulation and management, financial market, and macroeconomics. Dr. Song is the director of Centre for China
Financial Research (CCFR) and a professor in Faculty of Business and Economics at the University of Hong Kong. Dr.
Song holds a doctorate degree in Economics from Ohio State University, a master degree of Science in Mathematics from
Huazhong University of Science and Technology (ZEf %K) and a bachelor degree of Science in Mathematics from
Zhejiang University (¥ T KE%). Dr. Song is an independent non-executive director of United Laboratories International
Holdings Limited (Stock code: 3933) and Wuzhou International Holdings Limited (stock code: 1369) and Great Wall Pan Asia
Holdings Limited (formerly known as Armada Holdings Limited) (stock code: 583), all of which are companies listed on the
Stock Exchange. In additional, Dr. Song is an Independent Director of Tande Co., Ltd, a company listed on the Shanghai Stock
Exchange.

TSANG Yiu Keung (E#5%), aged 63, is an independent non-executive director. Mr. Tsang is a professional accountant
and a fellow member of The Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, The Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants and The Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators. Mr. Tsang was with KPMG for more than 27
years, where he was a senior banking partner until he retired from the firm in 2003. Mr. Tsang is an independent non-
executive director of L. K. Technology Holdings Limited (Stock code: 558), a company listed on the Stock Exchange, and
China CITIC Bank International Limited, a licensed bank in Hong Kong and CITIC International Financial Holdings Limited. Mr.
Tsang holds a higher diploma in Accountancy from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University.

Senior Management

WONG Tin Lai (F2X#), aged 55, has been appointed Chief Financial Officer of our Group since April 2012. Mr. Wong joined
our Group in July 1998. He has over 34 years' experience in auditing and finance industries. Prior to joining our Group, he had
worked with a number of multinational corporations including KPMG Peat Marwick, Mandarin Oriental Hotel Group, Lehman
Brothers and E.D.&F. Man Group. Mr. Wong holds a Juris Doctor degree from the Chinese University of Hong Kong, a master
degree in Business Administration from the Chinese University of Hong Kong and a master degree in Applied Finance from
Macquarie University Australia. He is also a fellow member of Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, a fellow
member of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and a member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in
England and Wales. Mr. Wong is a director of Guotai Junan (Hong Kong) Limited, Guotai Junan Finance (Hong Kong) Limited
and Guotai Junan Financial Products Limited.
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The Board is pleased to present its report together with
the audited financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) for the year ended 31
December 2016.

Principal Activities and Business Review

The Company is an investment holding company and its
subsidiaries are principally engaged in securities, futures,
options and leveraged foreign exchange dealing and
broking, corporate finance, asset management, loans
and financing, financial products, market making and
investments. There were no significant changes in the
nature of the Group's principal activities during the year.

Further discussion and analysis of the business review as
required by Schedule 5 of the Companies Ordinance (Cap.
622 of the Laws of Hong Kong), including a description of
the principal risks and uncertainties facing the Group and
an indication of likely future development in the Group’s
business, can be found in the Management Discussion and
Analysis set out on pages 70 to 81 of this annual report. The
discussion forms part of this directors’ report.

Results and Dividends

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2016 are set out in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income on page 125 of this
annual report.

The Directors declared an interim dividend of HK$0.03

per share and proposed the payment of a final dividend

of HK$0.045 per share to the shareholders whose names

appear on the register of members of the Company on 5
June 2017. The dividend will be payable on or about 19
June 2017.

Segment Information

Detailed segment information in respect of the Group’s
revenue and segment results are shown in note 4 to the
financial statements on pages 172 to 176.

Financial Summary

A summary of the published results, assets, liabilities and
non-controlling interests of the Group for the last five
financial years ended 31 December 2016 is set out on

pages 65 and 67 of this annual report.
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Particular of Subsidiaries

Details of the Company’s subsidiaries are set out in the note 1 to the financial statements which is set out on pages 132 to
134 of this annual report.

Share Capital and Equity-Linked Agreements

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company during the year are set out in note 31 to the financial statements
which is set out on page 209 of this annual report.

Details of equity-linked agreements are included in the section “Shared-based Compensation Scheme” below.

Distributable Reserve

As at 31 December 2016, the Company’s reserves available for distribution, calculated in accordance with the provisions
of Sections 291, 297 and 299 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, amounted to HK$314,868,000 of which
HK$313,439,000 has been proposed as final dividend for the year.

Donations

During the year, the Group made charitable donations amounting to HK$52,000.

Major Customers and Suppliers

For the year ended 31 December 2016, the revenue attributable to the five largest customers of the Group accounted for less
than 30% of the Group's total revenue. The Group is a provider of financial services. In the opinion of the Board, it is therefore
of no value to disclose details of the Group’s suppliers.

None of the Directors or any of their associates or any shareholders (which to the knowledge of the Directors own more than
5% of the issuer’s share capital) had any beneficial interest in the Group's 5 largest customers.

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of the Company’s Listed Securities

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities for
the year ended 31 December 2016 other than as an agent for the trustee of Guotai Junan Share Award Scheme (the “Share
Award Scheme”).

Directors

The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of this annual report are:

Executive Directors

Dr. YIM Fung

Mr. WONG Tung Ching
Ms. Ql Haiying

Mr. LI Guangjie

Independent Non-executive Directors

Dr. FU Tingmei
Dr. SONG Ming
Mr. TSANG Yiu Keung
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Changes of Information of Directors
Mr. LI Sang, Edward resigned as an Executive Director and Company Secretary of the Company on 24 February 2016.

Dr. FU Tingmei is appointed as an independent non-executive director of the following companies listed on the Stock
Exchange:

o Postal Savings Bank of China Co., Ltd. (stock code: 1658) (a bank listed on the Stock Exchange since 28 September
2016) with effect from 1 May 2016;

° COFCO Meat Holdings Limited (stock code: 1610) (a company listed on the Stock Exchange since 1 November 2016)
with effect from 23 May 2016; and

° China Resources Pharmaceutical Group Limited (stock code: 3320) (a company listed on the Stock Exchange since 28
October 2016) with effect from 20 June 2016.

Dr. SONG Ming is appointed as an independent non-executive director of Great Wall Pan Asia Holdings Limited (formerly
known as Armada Holdings Limited), a company listed on the Stock Exchange with stock code 583, with effect from 4
November 2016.

Save as disclosed above, there is no other information required to be disclosed pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing
Rules.

Directors’ Service Contracts

No Director has a service contract with the Company which is for a duration that may exceed 3 years or which requires the
Company to, in order to terminate such contract, give a notice period of more than 1 year or pay compensation or make other
payments equivalent to more than 1 year’'s emolument.

Details of Directors’ emoluments are set out in note 37 to the consolidated financial statements which is set out on pages
218 to 223 of this annual report.

In accordance with Article 99 of the Articles of Association of the Company, every Director shall be subject to retirement by
rotation at least once every three years. At each annual general meeting one-third of the Directors for the time being, or, if
their number is not three or a multiple of three, then the number nearest to one-third, shall retire from office and be eligible
for re-selection. Accordingly, Mr. WONG Tung Ching, Dr. FU Tingmei and Dr. SONG Ming shall retire by rotation. They will
offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

The Company has received annual confirmations of independence from Dr. FU Tingmei, Dr. SONG Ming and Mr. TSANG
Yiu Keung and as at the date of this annual report, still considers them to be independent. Generally, the term of office for
each Independent Non-executive Director is for a period of 3 years, and all of the 3 Independent Non-executive Directors are
subject to retirement by rotation in accordance with the Company's Articles of Association.

Directors’ Interests in Contracts

No Director had a material interest, either directly or indirectly, in any contract of significance to the business of the Group to
which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party during the year ended 31 December 2016.
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 and up to the date of this annual report, directors of the subsidiaries of the Company

were as follows:

Name of Subsidiaries

Name of Directors

Guotai Junan (Hong Kong) Limited

Guotai Junan Assets (Asia) Limited

Guotai Junan Capital Limited

Guotai Junan Finance (Hong Kong) Limited

Guotai Junan Financial Products Limited

Guotai Junan Fund Management Limited

Guotai Junan Futures (Hong Kong) Limited

Guotai Junan FX Limited

Guotai Junan Securities (Hong Kong) Limited

Guotai Junan International (Singapore)

Holdings Pte. Limited

Guotai Junan International Asset Management
(Singapore) Pte. Limited

Guotai Junan International Securities
(Singapore) Pte. Limited

YIM Fung, LI Guangjie, WONG Tin Lai, LI Sang, Edward (resigned on 24
February 2016), WONG Tung Ching

YIM Fung, YUAN Junping

WONG Tung Ching, YAU Deirdre, WONG Anthony, LO Kwong Shun,
Wilson

LI Guangjie, WONG Tin Lai, WANG Junhong

Ql Haiying, WONG Tin Lai, DUANMU Zhenyu (appointed on 18 January
2017)

YIM Fung, Ql Haiying, ZHANG Gaobo, CHAN Lap Tak Jeffrey, YUAN
Junping, TAN Koon Seng

CHAN Ka Wah, LAI Kai Hung

CHAN Ka Wah, YEUNG Tze Fung

WONG Tung Ching, Ql Haiying, LI Guangjie, LEE Ming Chuan Eric,
ZHANG Jinhui

YIM Fung, QI Haiying, TAN Koon Seng

YIM Fung, QI Haiying, TAN Koon Seng

Ql Haiying, TAN Koon Seng, LEE Oon Har (resigned on 5 January 2017),
OEl Su Chi lan (appointed on 18 January 2017), DAI Bo (appointed on 3
March 2017)
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Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interest in the Shares and Underlying Shares of the Company or any
Associated Corporation

As at 31 December 2016, the interests and short positions of the Directors or their associates in the share capital of the
Company or its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFQO")
which have been notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO, or
which were recorded in the register required to be kept pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code set out in Appendix 10 to the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”) were as follows:

Long position in the ordinary shares and underlying shares of the Company

Approximate

percentage

Number of of the

underlying Company's

Number of  shares held total number

Long/short Number of awarded under equity of shares

Name of director positions Shares held shares held derivatives Total in issue
YIM Fung Long 55,792,357 4,568,000 4,787,598 65,147,955 0.94%
WONG Tung Ching  Long 5,549,382 3,487,000 2,521,182 11,557,564 0.17%
Ql Haiying Long 579,000 1,157,000 9,000,000 10,736,000 0.15%
LI Guangjie Long 4,867,076 1,391,000 1,259,894 7,517,970 0.11%
FU Tingmei Long 1,512,096 — — 1,512,096 0.02%
SONG Ming Long 1,512,096 — — 1,512,096 0.02%
TSANG Yiu Keung Long 1,512,096 — — 1,512,096 0.02%

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2016, none of the Directors or chief executives of the Company had any
interests or short positions in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations which had to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the
SFO or which were required, pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein or which
were required, pursuant to the Model Code, to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange.
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Shared-Based Compensation Scheme

The Company operates two equity-settled share-based compensation schemes including a share option scheme (the “Share
Option Scheme”) and the Share Award Scheme for the purpose of assisting in recruiting, retaining and motivating key
staff members. Eligible participants of the schemes include the Company’s directors (including Independent Non-executive
Directors) and other employees of the Group.

Share Option Scheme

The Company operates a share option scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”) for the purpose of assisting in recruiting,
retaining and motivating key staff members. The Board of Directors has the discretion to grant share options to employees
and directors of any members of the Group, including independent non-executive directors. The Share Option Scheme
became effective on 19 June 2010 and, unless otherwise cancelled or amended, will remain in force for 10 years from that
date (i.e., 18 June 2020).

The total number of shares which may be issued upon exercise of all share options to be granted under the Share Option
Scheme must not in aggregate exceed 10% of the shares of the Company in issue at the date of approval of the Share Option
Scheme. The maximum number of shares issuable under share options to each eligible participant in the Scheme within any
12-month period is limited to 1% of the shares of the Company in issue at any time. Any further grant of share options in
excess of this limit is subject to shareholders’ approval in a general meeting.

Share options granted to a director or chief executive of the Company, or to any of their associates, are subject to approval in
advance by the independent non-executive directors. In addition, any share options granted to an independent non-executive
director of the Company, or to any of their associates, in excess of 0.1% of the shares of the Company in issue at any time or
with an aggregate value (based on the price of the Company’s shares at the date of grant) in excess of HK$5 million, within
any 12-month period, are subject to shareholders’ approval in advance in a general meeting.

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted within 28 days from the date of offer, upon payment of a nominal
consideration of HK$1 in total by the grantee. The exercise period of the share options granted is determinable by the
directors, and ends on a date which is not later than ten years from the date of offer of the share options.

The exercise price of share options is determinable by the directors, but may not be less than the higher of (i) the Stock
Exchange closing price of the Company’s shares on the date of offer of the share options; and (ii) the average Stock Exchange
closing price of the Company's shares for the five trading days immediately preceding the date of grant.

30,992,941 share options were exercised for the year ended 31 December 2016 and the weighted average share price
immediately preceding the exercise date during the year was HK$2.57. For the year ended 31 December 2016, 1,007,915
share option with an exercise price of HK$1.264 each lapsed prior to vesting date as a result of staff resignation.
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Movements of the share options under the Share Option Scheme for the year ended 31 December 2016 are as follows:

Weighted

Exercise average

price of  Share price share price
share immediately immediately Exercise
optionsat  preceding Options Options  preceding price of
dateof  the grant heldat  Exercised Lapsed heldat the exercise share
Name of Options grant date  1January during during 31 December date options
participants Date of grant granted (HKS) (HKS) 2016 the year the year 2016 (HKS) (HKS)

Directors

YIM Fung 240412012 6,000,000 2.50 251 - - - - N/A 0827
10/1/2014 4,750,000 382 372 9575196 (4,787,598 — 4787598 240 1.264
WONG Tung Ching  24/4/2012 3,000,000 250 251 - - - - N/A 0827
10/1/2014 2,500,000 382 372 5042364 (2521182) = 2521182 202 1.264
QI Haiying 11/6/2015 3,000,000 14.56 1362 9,000,000 - — 9,000,000 N/A 4.854
LI Guangjie 240412012 1,500,000 250 251 - - - - N/A 0827
10/1/2014 1,250,000 382 372 2779682 (1519,788) — 125989 3.08 1.264
LI Sang, Edward*  24/4/2012 1,500,000 250 251 = - - - N/A 0827
10/1/2014 1,250,000 382 372 2519790 (2,519,790) - - 204 1.264
FU Tingmei 24/412012 500,000 250 251 - - - - N/A 0827
SONG Ming 24142012 500,000 250 251 - - - - N/A 0827
TSANG YiuKeung ~ 24/4/2012 500,000 250 251 - - - - N/A 0827
Employees 244412012 26,500,000 250 251 13,057,248 (1,300,000) = 11,757,248 310 0.827
10/1/2014 40,250,000 382 372 86792827 (18344583  (1,007915) 67,440,329 268 1.264
11/6/2015 1,500,000 14.56 1362 4,500,000 - — 4,500,000 N/A 4,854
In aggregate 24142012 40,000,000 250 251 13,057,248 (1,300,000) — 11,757,248 310 0827
10/1/2014 50,000,000 382 372 106,709,859  (29,692941) (1,007,915 76,009,003 255 1.264
11/6/2015 4,500,000 14.56 1362 13,500,000 - — 13,500,000 N/A 4.854

* Mr. LI Sang, Edward resigned as a director on 24 February 2016.
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Share Award Scheme

On 27 October 2011, the Company adopted the share award scheme (the “Share Award Scheme”) under which shares of
the Company (the “Awarded Shares”) may be awarded to selected employees (including directors) of any members of the
Group (the “Selected Employees”) pursuant to the terms of the scheme rules and trust deed of the share award scheme.
The share award scheme became effective on the adoption date and, unless otherwise terminated or amended, will remain
in force for 10 years from that date, i.e., 26 October 2021.

The aggregate number of the Awarded Shares permitted to be awarded under the Share Award Scheme throughout the
duration of the Share Award Scheme is limited to 10% of the issued share capital of the Company as at the adoption date
(i.e. 164,000,000 shares). The maximum number of the Awarded Shares which may be awarded to a Selected Employee in
any 12-month period up to and including the date of award shall not in aggregate exceed 1% of the issued share capital of
the Company as at the adoption date (i.e. 16,400,000 shares).

When a Selected Employee has satisfied all vesting conditions, which might include service and/or performance conditions,
specified by the Board of Directors of the Company at the time of making the award and become entitled to the shares of
the Company forming the subject of the award, the trustee shall transfer the relevant Awarded Shares to that employee at
no cost.

No payment to purchase shares shall be made to the trustee of the Share Award Scheme and no instructions to acquire
shares shall be given to the trustee under the scheme where any Director of the Company is in possession of unpublished
price sensitive information in relation to the Company or where dealings by Directors are prohibited under any code or rules
and all applicable laws from time to time.

The voting rights and powers of any shares held under the Share Award Scheme shall be exercised by the independent
trustee who shall abstain from voting.

As of 31 December 2016, the Company has granted in aggregate of 65,187,000 Awarded Shares which represents 39.7% of
the limit of the Share Award Scheme.

The remaining number of the Awarded Shares can be awarded under the Share Award Scheme is 98,813,000, representing
1.42% of the total number of issued shares, 6,965,301,142 shares, of the Company as of 31 December 2016.

Details of the Awarded Shares granted and unvested as at 31 December 2016 are set out below:

Average Number of Number of Number of Number of

fair value Awarded Awarded Awarded Awarded
Date of Awarded per share Shares Shares Shares Shares
Shares granted (HKS) granted vested lapsed unvested Vesting date
15/4/2015 3.29 34,653,000 (23,271,000) (516,000) 10,866,000 30/11/2017
18/4/2016 2.79 27,987,000 (8,997,000) (538,000) 8,871,000 30/11/2017

884,000 30/11/2018
58,000 4/10/2017
58,000 4/10/2018

209,000 31/3/2017

208,000 31/3/2018

208,000 31/3/2019

1,141,000 Awarded Shares have lapsed prior to its vesting date as a result of staff resignation for the year ended 31
December 2016.
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Movements of Awarded Shares under the Share Award Scheme for the year ended 31 December 2016 are as follows:

Name of participants

Awarded
Shares at
1 January

2016

Granted
during
the year

Lapsed
during
the year

Awarded

Vested Shares at
during 31 December
the year 2016

Vesting date

Directors
Yim Fung

Wong Tung Ching

Qi Haiying

Li Guangjie

LI Sang, Edward*

Employees

9,141,000

4,158,000

1,185,000

990,000*

16,719,000

2,344,000

2,778,000

1,736,000

1,389,000

19,740,000

(1,054,000)

(6,917,000) 3,787,000

781,000

(3,449,000) 2,561,000
926,000
(579,000) 579,000
578,000
(1,183,000) 928,000
463,000

(990,000) -

(19,151,000) 209,000
58,000
11,883,000
208,000
58,000
6,092,000

208,000

30/11/2017
30/11/2018

30/11/2017
30/11/2018

30/11/2017
30/11/2018

30/11/2017
30/11/2018

31/3/2017
4/10/2017
30/11/2017
31/3/2018
4/10/2018
30/11/2018
31/3/2019

Total

32,193,000 27,987,000

(1,054,000)

(32,268,000) 209,000
58,000
19,737,000
208,000
58,000
8,840,000

208,000

31/3/2017
4/10/2017
30/11/2017
31/3/2018
4/10/2018
30/11/2018
31/3/2019

* Mr. LI Sang, Edward resigned as a director on 24 February 2016. 990,000 Awarded Shares of Mr. Li vested on 24 February 2016.

Details of the Share Award Scheme are set out in note 33 to the financial statements.
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Directors’ Rights to Acquire Shares or Debenture

Save as the Share Option Scheme and the Share Award Scheme disclosed above, for the year ended 31 December 20186,
the Company or any of its subsidiaries has not signed any agreements to enable the Directors to acquire benefits by means
of the acquisition of shares in or debt securities (including debentures) of the Company or any other body corporate and none
of the Directors, their spouses or children under the age of 18, had any rights to subscribe for securities of the Company, or
had exercised any such rights.

Substantial Shareholders’ and Other Person’s Interests and Short Positions in Shares and Underlying
Shares

As at 31 December 2016, the following persons (not being a Director of our Company) have interests or short positions in the
shares and underlying shares of the Company which have been disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Division 2
and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which were recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company under Section 336
of the SFO were as follows:

Ordinary shares of the Company

Approximate percentage of the
Company'’s total number of

Number of shares shares in issue
Name of shareholders Long positions Short positions Long positions Short positions
Shanghai International Group Co., Ltd (Note) 4,527,057,800 Nil 64.99% Nil
Guotai Junan Securities Co., Ltd (Note) 4,527,057,800 Nil 64.99% Nil
Guotai Junan Financial Holdings Limited (Note) 4,527,057,800 Nil 64.99% Nil
Guotai Junan Holdings Limited 4,527,057,800 Nil 64.99% Nil

Note: Guotai Junan Holdings Limited is wholly owned by Guotai Junan Financial Holdings Limited which in turn is a wholly-owned
subsidiary of Guotai Junan Securities Co., Ltd. Guotai Junan Securities Co., Ltd is a controlled corporation of Shanghai International
Group Co., Ltd. Accordingly, Guotai Junan Financial Holdings Limited, Guotai Junan Securities Co., Ltd and Shanghai International
Group Co., Ltd are deemed to have the same interest in the shares of the Company as Guotai Junan Holdings Limited.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2016, the Company has not been notified by any persons (other than Directors
or the chief executive of the Company) who had interests or short positions in the shares or underlying shares of the
Company which would fall to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Division 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or
which were recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO.

Save as the continuing connected transactions disclosed below, no contracts concerning the management and
administration of the whole or any substantial part of business of the Company or its subsidiaries were entered into or existed
during the year.
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Connected Transactions

On 4 November 2016, Guotai Junan Capital Limited (an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company) and Guotai Junan,
among others, entered into a Sponsor Appointment Agreement, pursuant to which Guotai Junan agreed to engage Guotai
Junan Capital Limited as one of the joint sponsors in connection with the proposed offering of the H shares of Guotai Junan
on the Stock Exchange. Guotai Junan Capital Limited will receive a fee of US$500,000 for acting as one of the joint sponsors.

On 24 February 2017, Guotai Junan Securities (Hong Kong) Limited (an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company)
and Guotai Junan entered into an Appointment Memorandum, pursuant to which Guotai Junan conditionally agreed to
engage Guotai Junan Securities (Hong Kong) Limited and/or its affiliated companies to act as one of the underwriters for the
proposed offering of the H shares of Guotai Junan on the Stock Exchange. This transaction is conditional upon the approval by
the independent shareholders of the Company as required under the Listing Rules. It is estimated that the total underwriting
commission payable by Guotai Junan to Guotai Junan Securities (Hong Kong) Limited and other underwriters to be appointed
by Guotai Junan for the proposed offering shall not exceed the aggregate amount of HK$654.65 million.

Continuing Connected Transactions

On 6 April 2016, the Company has entered into a master services agreement (“Master Services Agreement”) with Guotai
Junan pursuant to which the Company and Guotai Junan agreed that each of them will and will procure its member(s) to,
provide various services to the other in accordance to the terms set out in the Master Services Agreement, which will be
effective for a term of 3 years from 1 January 2016 to 31 December 2018. The services will cover the services which are to
arise from the following categories of transactions:

(a)  brokerage transactions;

(b)  investment management and advisory service transactions;
(c)  consulting service transactions; and

(d)  corporate finance transactions.

Pursuant to the Master Services Agreement, member(s) of the Group and member(s) of the Guotai Junan Group shall, from
time to time during the term of the Master Services Agreement, enter into separate supplemental agreements in respect
of the provision of services. The terms of the supplemental agreements with respect to the services and prices shall be
determined on normal commercial terms in the ordinary course of business after arm’s length negotiations and no less
favourable than those obtained from or offered by independent third parties.
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The annual caps in respect of the continuing connected transactions contemplated under the Master Services Agreement
for the 3 financial years ending 31 December 2016, 2017 and 2018 and respective actual amount received/paid in 2016 are
shown below:

Annual caps
For the financial For the financial For the financial
year ending year ending year ending 2016 Actual
31 December 2016 31 December 2017 31 December 2018 Amount
(HK$ million) (HK$ million) (HK$ million) (HK$ million)
Annual caps and 2016 actual amount in respect of the income attributable to the Group arising from:
(1) Brokerage services provided to
the member(s) of the Guotai
Junan Group 50 50 50 1.7
(2)  Investment management and
advisory service provided to
member(s) of the Guotai Junan
Group 10 10 10 -
(3)  Consulting services provided to
member(s) of the Guotai Junan
Group 10 10 10 -
(4)  Corporate finance services
provided to member(s) of the
Guotai Junan Group 10 10 10 -
Total: 80 80 80 1.7
Annual caps and 2016 actual amount in respect of the expenses incurred by the Group arising from:
(1) Brokerage services from the
member(s) of the Guotai Junan
Group 30 30 30 2.5
(2)  Investment management and
advisory services provided by
member(s) of the Guotai Junan
Group 10 10 10 -
(3)  Consulting services from
member(s) of the Guotai Junan
Group 30 30 30 19.4
(4)  Corporate finance services
provided by member(s) of the
Guotai Junan Group 10 10 10 -
Total: 80 80 80 21.9
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On 16 November 2016, pursuant to the Master Services Agreement, Guotai Junan (Hong Kong) Limited (a wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company) signed a supplemental agreement with Guotai Junan Consultancy Services (Shenzhen) Co.,
Limited whereby the later would provide consultancy services relating to macroeconomic information, market information
and listed company development etc. to Guotai Junan (Hong Kong) Limited. Pursuant to the supplemental agreement, the
proposed annual consultancy fee for the year ended 31 December 2016 payable by Guotai Junan (Hong Kong) Limited
would be no more than HK$21 million. The proposed annual consultancy fee for 2017 and 2018 would be agreed separately
by entering into separate supplemental agreement. The total consultancy fee paid to Guotai Junan Consultancy Services
(Shenzhen) Co., Limited for the year ended 31 December 2016 was approximately HK$19 million which is also set out in Note
40 to the financial statements on pages 226 to 231 of this annual report.

The continuing connected transactions undertaken by the Group are included in the transactions set out in note 40 to the
financial statements.

The Independent Non-executive Directors of the Company have reviewed and confirmed that the continuing connected
transactions were entered into:

(i) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;

(i)~ on normal commercial terms or on terms no less favorable to the Group than terms available to/from independent third
parties; and

(i) in accordance with the relevant agreements governing them on terms that are fair and reasonable and in interests of
the shareholders of the Company as a whole.

In accordance with paragraph 14A.56 of the Listing Rules, the Directors engaged the auditor of the Company to report on
the above mentioned continuing connected transactions in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagement
3000 “Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information” (“HKSAE 3000") and with
reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules”
("PN740") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

The auditor has reported to the Directors in accordance with HKSAE 3000 and with reference to PN740 that the transactions:
(i) have been approved by the Board of the Company;

(i) are in accordance with the pricing policies of the Company;

(i) have been entered into in accordance with the relevant agreements governing such transactions; and

(iv)  have not exceeded the relevant CAPs disclosed in the announcements dated 6 April 2016.

Disclosure Pursuant to Rule 13.21 of the Listing Rules

On 29 January 2014, the Company (as guarantor) and its wholly-owned subsidiary, Guotai Junan (Hong Kong) Limited (as
borrower), entered into a facility agreement (the “Facility Agreement A"”) with certain financial institutions (as lenders) in
respect of a revolving loan facility and a term loan facility in an aggregate amount of HK$3,300 million for a term of 3 years.

On 29 April 2015, the Company (as guarantor) and its wholly-owned subsidiary, Guotai Junan (Hong Kong) Limited (as
borrower), entered into a facility agreement (the “Facility Agreement B, together with Facility Agreement A, the “Facility
Agreements”) with certain financial institutions (as lenders) in respect of a revolving loan facility and a term loan facility in an
aggregate amount of HK$10,500 million for a term of 3 years.
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Under the Facility Agreements, it will be an event of default if Guotai Junan Securities Co., Ltd., the controlling shareholder
of the Company, does not, or ceases to directly or indirectly own, legally and beneficially, at least 51% of the interest of the
Company. In case of an event of default, the lenders may, by notice to borrower (i) cancel all or part of the loan; and/or (ii)
declare all or part of the loan, together with accrued interest, and all other amounts accrued or outstanding under the Facility
Agreements be immediately due and payable and/or (iii) declare that all or part of the loan become payable on demand.

Issue of USD300,000,000 Subordinated Perpetual Securities

On 8 June 2016, the Company as issuer, Guotai Junan Securities (Hong Kong) as placing agent and each of the subscribers
(China Industrial Securities International Brokerage Limited, CNPC Finance (HK) Limited, China Guangfa Bank-China Southern
Fund-QDII1-17, Guotai Junan Financial Holdings Limited and SPDB International Investment Management Limited), entered
into a Subscription Agreement in connection with the subordinated perpetual securities in the aggregate principal amount of
USD300,000,000.

The offering price of the subordinated perpetual securities was 100% of the principal amount of the subordinated perpetual
securities. Subject to the terms and conditions of the subordinated perpetual securities, the subordinated perpetual securities
confer a right to receive distributions (each a “Distribution”) from the issue date at the applicable Distribution Rate (as defined
below). Distributions shall be payable on the subordinated perpetual securities semi-annually in arrear on each Distribution
payment date in United States dollars. The first Distribution has been paid on 30 October 2016.

The rate of distribution (”Distribution Rate") applicable to the subordinated perpetual securities shall be:

(i) in respect of the period from and including, the issue date to, but excluding, the first call date (30 April 2019), the initial
Distribution Rate (4.5 per cent per annum); and

(i) in respect of the periods from, and including, the first call date to, but excluding, the immediately following reset date
(first call date and each day falling every three calendar years after the first call date), the applicable reset distribution
rate (applicable 3-year US swap rate plus 8.0 per cent).

The Company may at its option, on giving not less than 30 nor more than 60 days’ notice to the holders of the subordinated
perpetual securities in accordance with the terms and conditions of the subordinated perpetual securities and the trustee
(which notice will be irrevocable), redeem in whole, but not in part, the subordinated perpetual securities:

(i) on the first call date; or
(i) on any Distribution payment date after the first call date, (each, a “Call Date"”).

On expiry of any such notice period referred to above, the Company shall be bound to redeem the subordinated perpetual
securities on the relevant Call Date at their principal amount together with any distribution accrued to (but not including) the
date fixed for redemption (including any arrears of distribution and any additional distribution amount).

The net proceeds of the issuance of the subordinated perpetual securities, after deducting the estimated fees and expenses,
amounted to approximately HK$2,329 million. The Company has used the net proceeds from the subordinated perpetual
securities for general working capital purposes. The Company may adjust the foregoing stated use of proceeds in response
to changing market conditions and reallocate the use of proceeds.
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Directors’ Interest In Competing Businesses

As at 31 December 2016, none of the Board members of the Company and their associates had any interests in an entity
whose business competes or is likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the Company’s business.

Permitted Indemnity

Subject to the Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong), every Director is entitled under the Company’s
Articles of Association to be indemnified out of the assets of the Company against all losses and liabilities which he or she
may sustain or incur in or about the execution or discharge of his or her duties and/or the exercise of his or her powers and/or
otherwise in relation to or in connection with his or her duties, powers or office. To the extent permitted by such Ordinance,
the Company has taken out insurance against the liability and costs associated with defending any proceedings which may
be brought against directors of companies in the Group.

Sufficiency of Public Float

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and within the knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of
the Company's total number of issued shares was held by the public throughout the year ended 31 December 2016 and up
to the date of this report.

Corporate Governance

The Company’s corporate governance principles and practices are set out in the Corporate Governance Report on pages 82
to 95 of this report.

Compliance with Relevant Laws and Regulations

During the year under review, as far as the Board and management are aware, there was no material breach of or non-
compliance with the applicable laws and regulations by the Group that has a significant impact on the businesses and
operations of the Group.

Environmental, Social and Governance Report and Corporate Responsibility

The Company is committed to improve the standard of corporate governance to its daily operation and management.
The management has been putting effort in maintaining the Company’s sense of responsibility towards the community
and environment, to improving general awareness of social and environmental responsibilities among employees and to
encouraging its employees to actively participate in environmental and social activities as contributions towards the building
of a more socially responsible and environmental friendly society. The Environmental, Social and Governance Report will be
available at the Company's website (www.gtja.com.hk) and the Stock Exchange’s website in or around mid-May 2017.
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The financial statements have been audited by Ernst & Young who will retire and being eligible and offer themselves for re-
appointment at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company to be held on 26 May 2017.

Awards

The Group has received a number of awards and gained widespread recognition in the market. The main awards for the year

2016 were as follows:

Awards

Organizer/Media

Securities House of the Year of Asia Risk Awards 2016

TOP 100 HK listed companies — Potential Enterprise Award

“Best Brokerage House of the Year” by the “14th China’s
Financial Annual Champion Award (Overseas)”

CAMAHK-Bloomberg Offshore China Fund Awards 2016
— Best ETF Participating Dealer

2016 Outstanding Hong Kong Brokerage House
the “Best IPO Project Sponsor”/the “Most Investment
Value of Listed Companies” in “2016 China Financial

Market Listed Companies Awards”

“2016 Golden Hong Kong Stocks”:the “Most Investment
Value of Listed Companies”

Asia Risk Magazine

Tencent & FINET GROUP

Hexun

Bloomberg and the China Asset Management Association
of Hong Kong (CAMAHK)

Tencent

China Financial Market

Zhitongcaijing & Tonghuashun Caijing
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Ratings

On 4 August 2016, S&P Global Ratings assigned its “BBB" long-term and "A-2" short-term issuer credit ratings to the
Company, the outlook on the long-term rating of the Company is stable.

P

On 5 September 2016, Moody's Investors Service (“Moody's”) has assigned a first time Baa2 long-term issuer rating and
a Prime-2 short-term issuer rating to the Company with negative outlook. On 26 February 2017, Moody's has changed the
outlook to stable from negative on long-term issuer ratings, the long-term and short term (local/foreign currency) issuer
ratings of the Company remain unchanged. At the same time, Moody's has raised the Company's standalone assessment
from ba2 to ba1l, attributable to the sound financial metrics of the Company under the new methodology, and the Baa2 long
term issuer ratings also reflect a two-notch uplift based on Moody's assumption of a high level of support from the Chinese
government in times of stress.

By order of the Board
Dr. YIM Fung, JP
Chairman

Hong Kong, 17 February 2017
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Independent Auditor’s Report

B ZBARE

Ernst & Young
22/F, CITIC Tower
1 Tim Mei Avenue
Central, Hong Kong

EY::

TO THE MEMBERS OF
GUOTAI JUNAN INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Guotai Junan
International Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the
“Group”) set out on pages 125 to 260, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2016, and the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income,
the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view
of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2016,
and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows
for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA") and have been properly prepared in compliance
with the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“"HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the
audit of the consolidated financial statements section of our report. \We are
independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

B B AR

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and
in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion
on these matters. For each matter below, our description of how our audit
addressed the matter is provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements
section of our report, including in relation to these matters. Accordingly,
our audit included the performance of procedures designed to respond to
our assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements. The results of our audit procedures, including the
procedures performed to address the matters below, provide the basis for
our audit opinion on the accompanying consolidated financial statements.
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Key audit matters

EREITSE

How our audit addressed the key audit matters

BERBESTSBREFT P RNABEHN

#a TE P B R B A K JE W R X 0 6 (8 7

Impairment assessment on loans and advances to customers and accounts receivable

As at 31 December 2016, gross loan and advances to customers
and related impairment allowance amounted to HK$14,632
million and HK$94 million respectively; while gross accounts
receivable and related impairment allowance amounted
to HK$1,513 million and HK$17 million respectively. The
assessment of impairment for loans and advances to customers
and accounts receivable involves significant management
judgements and estimates on the amount of losses already
incurred at the reporting date.

RZZE—RNEF+-A=+—H G TEFNERRBRAHEKIEH
REBED R AE14,632B BB T NIAAEB T « EWERKERE LA
BRERES B LI3EEBIRITEEBETL - K TEFPNER
RBFARERESRORET G REREEHRERHEEENE
BeBEELERHE R -

We obtained an understanding of the Group's
methodology and assumptions used for estimating
the impairment allowance on loans and advances to
customers and accounts receivable. Our procedures
to assess the Group's impairment allowance included
the following:
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Independent Auditor’s Report

B ZBARE

Key audit matters (continued)

ARETTEE®)

Key audit matters

BERETER

How our audit addressed the key audit matters

BERESSEREFT P ENAEEHN

/mpairment assessment on loans and advances to customers and accounts receivable (continued)

#a T EFP BB R B R JE MR e 6 (8 5V S ()

The Group's methodology and assumptions used for estimating
both the amount and timing of future cash flows require the
review of individual outstanding amounts regularly depending
on individual circumstances or market condition. Impairment
allowances on individually assessed accounts are determined
by an evaluation of the incurred loss at the end of the reporting
period on a case-by-case basis. The assessment normally
encompasses the nature and value of the collateral held and the
anticipated receipts.

BEEEGAARARBRSRENSRREBMANTERRRERETF
5 TE 1500 3 B FE T 0L SE A 3 (B B R A8 SR IRE 1T 2R B < SBIBRT AR

WE R AR ELNER - ZEFHEMER S IR P H R E R
1 e E¥1E@ﬁ%)?‘§ﬁﬂ%ﬁﬁ#&'uE‘U’I‘EE&ETQM&EE@ﬂH&Z@%%ﬁ e

e For margin loans, we considered the control
procedures performed by the Group and checked
each individual account to determine whether
there was any shortfall by comparing the loan
outstanding with the value of collateral. In
assessing the impairment allowance made by
the Group, we also checked the valuation of the
collateral and other sources of cash flows.

RARERME F RAISERE SEREREHRNE
%‘JEF&&ER{IEUEE)E BERB L REBERE
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HipH S RERIR ©

e For term loans to customers, we selected
samples based on the significance of the
outstanding loan amounts. We formed an
independent view on whether there were any
impairment indicators and the impairment
allowance recognised by the Group through
reviewing detailed information on the borrowers’
financial performance, recoverable cash flows and
valuation of collateral.
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e For accounts receivable, we reviewed the aging
analysis prepared by the Group and considered
the credit standing and historical repayment
pattern of the counterparties when assessing the
impairment allowance made by the Group.
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We have also assessed the adequacy of the Group s
disclosure of loans and advances to customers and
accounts receivable and the related credit risk in Note
16 and Note 18 to the financial statements.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

B B AR

Key audit matters (continued)

ARETTEE®)

Key audit matters

EREITSE

How our audit addressed the key audit matters

BREITSREFESTRENMAEEN

Valuation of financial instruments
L@ T AmEE

The Group has applied valuation techniques to determine the
fair value of financial instruments that are not quoted in active
markets. These valuation techniques, in particular those that
include significant unobservable inputs, involve management
judgements and assumptions. With different valuation
techniques and assumptions applied, the valuation results can
vary significantly.

EEBERMBENEAEELEERMSRENSB ITANRFE -
ZERETDE(LERBEEABEER2HE )P REEEHEH R
BR - HESRIEEGBETEZRBERNOTRMBEZE TR -

As at 31 December 2016, the Group’s financial assets and
liabilities measured at fair value and categorised within
Level 3 amounted to HK$1,339 million and HK$1,172 million
respectively, representing 10% and 13% of the Group’s financial
assets and liabilities measured at fair value.

RIZE—RFE+-A=+—H  ESERATVEAELSER
IR ERMEERBESRIZE1IBEEATRIIT2EEET - 9
s BEXERATEFESHEENAEMNI0%K13% -
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We obtained an understanding of the Group's
valuation policy on the valuation of financial
instruments, including independent price verification,
independent model validation and approval.

BHMETHR BESEFESRIARENMEERR 8
EBEUERKE BUBERBREREY -

We focused on the valuation methodologies and
assumptions of financial instruments that were
classified as Level 3 in the fair value hierarchy. We
involved our valuation specialists in evaluating the
valuation techniques, inputs and assumptions through
comparison with the valuation techniques that are
commonly used in the market, the validation of
observable inputs using external market data, and
comparison with valuation outcomes obtained from a
number of pricing sources.
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We have also assessed the adequacy of the Group's

disclosure of the fair value hierarchy and related
disclosures in Note 41 to the financial statements.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

B ZBARE

Other information included in the Annual Report

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises the information included in the Annual Report,
other than the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the
other information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion
thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have
performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. WWe have nothing to report in
this regard.

Responsibilities of the directors for the consolidated financial
statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors of the
Company are responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors of the
Company either intend to liquidate the Company or to cease operations or
have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit Committee in
discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group's financial
reporting process.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

B B AR

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated
financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. Our report is made solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with section 405 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and
for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error
and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken
on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

B ZBARE

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated
financial statements (continued)

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We

also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the Group's internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made
by the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained,
whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions
that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we
are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’'s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to
cease to continue as a going concern.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

B B AR

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated
financial statements (continued)

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group
audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence and
to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit
matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law
or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so
would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of
such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s
report is Tso Miu Yue, Agnes.

Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong
17 February 2017
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

Year ended 3| December 2016
HE—FE—NFFA=+—HIFEZ

GERERkEtEERER

2016 AONES)
—E-XRF —ZE—hF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTET FAT
Revenue Wz 5 2,519,187 2,276,608
Other income H A 2,608 1,899
Revenue and other income W a8 R EH AU A 2,521,795 2,278,507
Staff costs ST A 6 (526,657) (505,649)
Commission to account executives EPEEMAE (55,117) (118,530)
Depreciation e (34,695) (28,664)
Other operating expenses Hih &R &M (379,923) (207,980)
Operating profit R A 1,525,403 1,417,684
Finance costs BEKAK 7 (336,796) (249,562)
Profit before tax B F A s A 8 1,188,607 1,168,122
Income tax expense PRISHIR X 9 (162,520) (152,689)
Profit for the year FREF 1,026,087 1,015,433
Other comprehensive income for FREMEMEWES
the year, net of tax MERTIE
- Exchange difference on translation —HNERE X ERE
of foreign exchange 724 (125)
Total comprehensive income for FREEKNZHEEE
the year 1,026,811 1,015,308
Profit for the year attributable to: EAFEREF
Owners of parent SRARIHEA A 1,025,879 1,013,541
— Holders of ordinary shares —EmRARER 969,139 1,013,541
— Holders of other equity instrument —HiERTAEEA 56,740 —
Non-controlling interests AR = 208 1,892
1,026,087 1,015,433
Total comprehensive income for EEFRZHEKE
the year attributable to: B
Owners of the parent ISYNCIEZZ =N 1,026,603 1,013,416
— Holders of ordinary shares — EEARAR 969,863 1,013,416
— Holders of other equity instrument —HiERTAEEEA 56,740 —
Non-controlling interests IR 208 1,892
1,026,811 1,015,308
Earnings per share attributable FA B AR RE
to ordinary equity holders of BRER
the parent
— Basic (in HK cents) —HAKR (LABIIET) 11(a) 14.1 14.9
— Diluted (in HK cents) — 88 (LABILED) 11(b) 13.9 14.6
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
e BT T

As at 3| December 2016
R-ZE—NF1+ZH=+—H

2016 2015
—B-KR¥ —ZT-hF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAIT
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment M - BB NERAE 12 493,559 512,166
Intangible assets | EE 13 2,823 2,823
Deferred tax assets RIETRIBE & 15 3,162 576
Other assets HihEE 14 10,168 5,043
Loans and advances to customers BTEFPHERRBR 16 251,478 —
Financial assets at fair value through BATEET AERER
profit or loss TRIBEE 20 51,701 120,141
Total non-current assets FRENEELTE 812,891 640,749
Current assets REBEE
Loans and advances to customers KBTI EEHER R 16 14,286,666 12,375,857
Receivable from reverse repurchase f 1) [B] B8 17 7% & MU R 0E
agreements 22 480,782 509,695
Accounts receivable FE Y FRIB 18 1,495,924 1,932,119
Prepayments, deposits and AR - BE REM
other receivables U FIAE 19 151,470 258,782
Financial assets at fair value through AT EFTAERA
profit or loss DRIEE 20 13,261,624 4,506,947
Derivative financial instruments PTHESRTEA 21 122,001 24,952
Tax recoverable AT E R IR 24,072 8,677
Client trust bank balances K=tk T4 5% 12,400,917 14,662,991
Cash and cash equivalents B RESEEY 23 1,964,398 2,408,666
Total current assets MEEEARE 44,187,854 36,688,686
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
mE BT T

As at 3| December 2016
R-ZE—NFF+ZHA=+—H

2016 2015
—E—REF —ZT—hHE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHxT FHBT
Current liabilities REBEE
Accounts payable FET R IAE 24 (14,871,038) (18,218,312)
Other payables and accrued liabilities EEMFRIERESEE 25 (271,681) (259,942)
Derivative financial instruments PTEEmI A 21 (130,083) (29,766)
Bank borrowings RITIER 26 (6,811,433) (4,765,662)
Debt securities in issue BEB{TERES 27 (5,823,241) (2,358,088)
— At amortised cost — IR AR (175,710) (429,040)
- Designated as at fair value through —EERATE ABZR
profit or loss (5,647,531) (1,929,048)
Financial liabilities at fair value BAVERAEBRD
through profit or loss ERBE 28 (3,485,520) (505,340)
Obligations under repurchase B =R ER
agreements 29 (930,958) (400,517)
Tax payable FESBIE (9,695) (44,282)
Total current liabilities BB ERAE (32,333,649) (26,581,909)
Net current assets mEEEFRE 11,854,205 10,106,777
Total assets less current liabilities HWEERRBER 12,667,096 10,747,526
Non-current liabilities FEREBERE
Bank borrowings IRITEK 26 (2,100,000) (3,090,000)
Deferred tax liabilities EERHIBEE 15 (33,262) (22,269)
(2,133,262) (3,112,269)
Net assets EEZFE 10,533,834 7,635,257
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
e BT T

As at 3| December 2016
R-ZE—NF1+ZH=+—H

2016 2015
—B-KR¥ —ZT-hF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAIT
Equity R
Share capital A% AR 31 6,054,025 6,004,362
Other reserve Hib 35 (1,236,460) (1,236,460)
Currency translation reserve B 599 (125)
Share-based compensation reserve VAR (7 B E R B R 88,902 95,417
— Share option reserve — BRI 32 48,266 44,469
— Share award reserve — i&p BB 33 40,636 50,948
Shares held under the share IR 12 BT B A M AR (D
award scheme 34 (214,323) (199,643)
Retained profits {RER 4 A 3,482,455 2,960,013
Equity attributable to holders of TR E ARG R
the ordinary shares 8,175,198 7,623,564
Equity attributable to holders of HibiEzs T Bi5HE ARG
other equity instrument 30 2,346,685 —
Equity attributable to owners of M ARIES AEGER
the parent 10,521,883 7,623,564
Non-controlling interests I i e 11,951 11,693
Total equity AR 10,533,834 7,635,257
Dr. YIM Fung Ms. Ql Haiying
e iE + PR
Director Director
=2 3
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

Year ended 3| December 2016
ECE—NFF A=+ —HILFE

Equity attributable to owners of the parent

G N i

Shares
held under
the share
Currency Share Share award Other Non-

translation option award  scheme equity controlling

Share Other  reserve  reserve  reserve RIER{ Retained instrument interests Total
capital reserve EMBE < ERE RORD KWHE  profits At Total  FE2R  equity
BA  Hftifits e ke ke BENRG RERN RHIA @t B EEAE
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000
TEr TEx TEx TEx TEx TEx  TEx TEx  TEx  FEx  TEn

Balanceat 1 January 2016 ~ RZZE—1E
—A—BH%ES 6,004,362 (1,236,460) (125) 44,469 50,948  (199,643) 2,960,013
Total comprehensive income ~ FRZEY AR

7,623,564 11,693 7,635,257

for the year - - 724 - - - 969,139 56,740 1,026,603 208 1,026,811
Capital contribution from DERRERTE

minority interests - - - - - - - - - 1,550 1,550
Recognition of equity-settled B EzEE

share-based payments AR (D BEHER)

(Note 32 and 33) 3 (ME32R33) - - - 14885 81272 - - - 96,157 - 96,157
Purchase of shares held under B ERER( 25

the share award scheme rElmEAaRA

INote 33 and 34 (Pi2E3334) - - - - - (697 - - lear - (e

Vesting of shares for the share k(72BN EI5RE
award scheme (Notes 33 Rin(HzH33534)

and 34) - - - - (91584) 54291 34,983 - (2,310) - (2,310)
Shares issued upon exercise  REERRIE: 2/ T A

of share options under the  BERRIEIETT(E

share option scheme fETRRG

(Note 32) (Mz£32) 49,663 - - (11,088) - - - - 38,575 - 38,575
Issuance of perpetual BTKEES

securities - - - - - - — 2,329,235 2,329,235 - 2,329,235
Perpetual securities KEEHD R

distribution - - - - - - - (39,2900  (39,290) - (39,290
Final dividend for 2015 YNZE-1%F

{Note 10) AERE(HHEE10) - - - - - - (215321) - (215321) - (215321)
Interim dividend for 2016 IRZE—E

{Note 10) RS (HFEH0) - - - - - - (206,359) - (206,359) - (206,359)
Interim dividend for 2016 paid ~ {14 EriEER

to minority interests (Note) M= E—7"4

RS (M) - - - - - - - - - (15000  (1,500)

Balance at 31 December 2016 R=E—E+= A
=+—HMN&ES 6,054,025 (1,236,460) 599 48,266 40,636 (214,323) 3,482,455 2,346,685 10,521,883 11,951 10,533,834

Note: Interim dividend paid to minority shareholders of a subsidiary. M ZRMBATLHERRAFHRE -

e
— 3 B =
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

Year ended 3| December 2016
HE—F—NNFf-_A=1—HILFE

Equity attributable to owners of the parent

e AR

Shares

held under

the share
Currency Share Share award Other Non-
translation option award  scheme equity controlling

Share Other  reserve reserve 1 Retained instrument interests Total

capital  reserve  EEHE Hith 1) equity
RA Efofas ) it il RENRG RO ERLE @5t EReE
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS' HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
T Thr TEr TEr  TEx TAL T Thr Ter TEr  TEx

Balance at 1 January 2015 R=Z—RH—F—H

HiEeh 5,862,194 (1,236,460 — 63,696 13,884 (102,897) 2,464,996 — 7,095,413 9,801 7,065,214

Total comprehensive income  FRZEY AR

for the year - = (125) - - — 1,013,541 — 1,013,416 1,892 1,015,308
Recognition of equity-settled  HERAERE

share-based payments AR (D BEHER)

(Note 32 and 33) 3 (M3E32133) — — — 22130 78,651 - - — 100,781 — 100781
Purchase of shares held under 8 E 18 B I7 228

the share award scheme STEMERNRS

(Note 33 and 34) (Bf5E33%34) = == = = —  (119,897) == —  (119,897) —  (119,897)

Vesting of shares for the share k{7 R E):TEI5RE

award scheme (Notes 33 T (Fit3E33 1e34)

and 34) — — — = (41,587) 23,151 17,530 - (906) = (906)
Shares issued upon exercise  REERRIE: 2/ T A

of share options under the ~ BERRIEIE( T

share option scheme fETRRG
(Note 32) (Wi332) 152,168 — - #41357) - — — — 11081 — 108N
Final dividend for 2014 YR=E-ME
{Note 10) RS (FzH10) — — - - - —  (296,787) —  (296,787) — (296,787
Interim dividend for 2015 YRH-E-hE
{Note 10) (Rl — — - - - —  (239,267) —  (239,267) —  (239,267)

Balance at 31 December 2015 R=B—RE+=f
=+—HeE% 6,004,362 (1,236,460) (125) 44,469 50,948  (199,643) 2,960,013 — 7,623,564 11,693 7,635,257

—— oS St e e Rl o
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
mEEERER

Year ended 3| December 2016
HE—FE—NFFA=+—HIFEZ

2016
—REF

HK$’000
T

RERHAARTNEFH

Net cash flows used in operating

activities 38 (6,733,478) (3,484,267)
Cash flows from investing activities RETBRENE
Purchases of property, plant and equipment BEYE  BENRE 12 (16,090) (27,327)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEWE « BEKEBEHE

plant and equipment — 70

RETBDAARSMEFE

Net cash flows used in investing

activities (16,090) (27,257)
Cash flows from financing activities RMEITHRERE
Net proceeds from bank borrowings RITERAERIEFR 1,055,771 3,392,943

Proceeds from issuance of debt BITEBESBERIE

securities 7,799,962 3,726,049
Repayment of debt securities BEEEKES (4,334,809) (1,539,084)
Net proceeds from issuance of other equity BITHAERTAME

instrument RIBFE 30 2,329,235 =
Net proceeds from issuance of shares upon F BB AR T M 31 TAR 1D

exercise of share options SRR 32 38,575 110,811
Distribution on other equity instrument HiplER T AR (39,290) =
Dividend paid to shareholders SRR 10 (485,947) (539,793)
Dividend paid to minority interest shareholders DB EEFEZHA ARE (1,500) —
Capital contribution from minority DER R ERTE

interest shareholders 1,550 —
Purchase of shares held under the BB B RIEA D 1R BT 2

share award scheme 58 KA (D 34 (68,971) (119,897
Net cash flows from financing activities MEEEREREFE 6,294,576 5,031,029
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash BERBSSENORD), /#m

equivalents HE (454,992) 1,519,505
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning FOBRENBEEEEY

of year 2,408,666 889,286
Effect of foreign exchange rate MR E TR

changes, net 724 (125)
Cash and cash equivalents at end FRESRBREEEY

of year 1,954,398 2,408,666
Analysis of balances of cash and BeRASESEBNNERIN

cash equivalents
Cash and bank balances e MR 23 1,257,571 1,340,967
Non-pledged time deposits with (o] i B R B EA EI TR=f8A

original maturity of less than RAEREIR TR

three months when acquired 23 696,827 1,067,699
Cash and cash equivalents as stated in the RemeaxRizHERHESZEY

statement of cash flow 1,954,398 2,408,666
Non-pledged time deposits with original maturity [k R 5 2 B #8:8 =18 A 2 R

more than three months when acquired TERTER 23 10,000 -

Cash and cash equivalents as stated in the BISIR K 2 B e KRESEED
statement of financial position 1,964,398 2,408,606

By
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Notes to Financial Statements

ISR M

31 December 2016
ZE-NFF=ZA=+—H

Corporate and Group Information

Guotai Junan International Holdings Limited (the “Company”) was
incorporated on 8 March 2010 in Hong Kong with limited liability under
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and its shares were listed on
the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”) on 8 July 2010. The registered office address of
the Company is 27th Floor, Low Block, Grand Millennium Plaza, 181
Queen’s Road Central, Hong Kong. The Company is an investment
holding company and its subsidiaries are principally engaged in
brokerage, corporate finance, asset management, loans and financing,
financial products, market making and investment.

The Company’s immediate holding company and ultimate holding
company are Guotai Junan Holdings Limited (“GJHL") incorporated in
the British Virgin Islands and Guotai Junan Securities Company Limited
(“Guotai Junan") incorporated in the People’'s Republic of China,
respectively.

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries as at 31 December 2016 are as
follows:

NEAREEER

BREAREFRERAERAB (AR
ADAR_ZF-—FTF=A/\BREE
BARIGIIERBEIMALNERA
A ARAENEROHR -ZT—FFLH
NBEREBAERXZABER AR ([H
R D) ERET o KRR EMMER
Rt AEEZ/ BT 181 AT
BESIRE2718 - ARBARKREERA
A EMBARIZENERLL OB
BE BEEE BEXLBE -
Emm o MTEBRIKE -

RRARHBERZER DA RREERA
AR AREBRE XS EM
BHERBERERBR AR ([HFE L
IR 1) B A 2 A R FL AN B R SZ A
BRELEFBNDERAF([EHRE
2Z]) e
RZZE—ARF+-_A=+—H B
MEARMFBNT

Percentage of equity
Place of attributable
incorporation to the Company
and business AAFEERER DL
Company name TR K Share capital Direct Indirect  Principal activities
NREH -3k e HE B FEEHR
Guotai Junan (Hong Kong) Limited (“GJHK") ~ Samoa/Hong Kong  HK$6,330,989,070 100% —  Investment holding and provision of general
BREZ(ER)ARAA(BERERES]) EED/EH 6,330,989,070/ 7 administration and support services to its
subsidiaries
REBRRRMANBARRE-—REERIE
TR
Guotai Junan International (Singapore) Singapore SG$300,000 100% —  Investment holding and provision of general
Holding Pte Limited g 300,000%7 M 7T administration and support services to its
subsidiaries
RERRRMENBARRE-REERIIE
TR

e S
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Notes to Financial Statements

IR M

31 December 2016
—E-ANFF+ZH=+—H

|.  Corporate and Group Information (continued) . RAREEER®)
Particulars of the principal subsidiaries as at 31 December 2016 are as RZE—RF+ZA=+—AH 2
follows: (continued) MEBARMFBNT : (&)
Percentage of equity
Place of attributable
incorporation to the Company
and business AAAEERER DL
Company name EMELR Share capital Direct Indirect  Principal activities
NRER T B HE B FEEE
Guotai Junan International Asset Singapore SG$1,000,000 — 100%  Asset management
Management (Singapore) Pte Limited ~ #fi1%% 1,000,00037 M3 7T AEER
Guotai Junan International Securities Singapore SG$500,000 — 100%  Distribution of research reports
(Singapore) Pte Limited' g 500,000 M5 BImERS
Guotai Junan Securities (Hong Kong) Hong Kong HK$7,500,000,000 — 100%  Securities dealing and broking and provision of
Limited i 7,500,000,000% 7T wealth management services
BREZES(BE)ERAR FHER RS RRMES ZERRE
Guotai Junan Futures (Hong Kong) Limited  Hong Kong HK$50,000,000 — 100%  Futures dealing and broking
BREZHE(FH)ARAA A 50,000,00077C HEEEREL
Guotai Junan Finance (Hong Kong) Limited ~ Hong Kong HK$300,000,000 — 100%  Money lending and trading in securities
BEREZHH(BE)ARRA £k 300,000,000% 7 BEEREFERE
Guotai Junan Capital Limited Hong Kong HK$50,000,000 — 100%  Provision of consultancy and financial services
AREZRARRAA Bb 50,000,000/ 7 REEF ARG B RS
Guotai Junan Assets (Asia) Limited Hong Kong HK$50,000,000 — 100%  Asset management
BREZAEER(TM)BRAF Bk 50,000,000/ BEER
Guotai Junan Fund Management Limited> ~ Hong Kong HK$10,000,000 — 50%  Asset management and trading in securities
BREZECERERARL A 10,000,007 7 EEERREFER
Guotai Junan Financial Products Limited ~ Hong Kong HK$1,000,000 — 100%  Trading in securities
BREZEREMERAA &k 1,000,0007C EHEE
Guotai Junan FX Limited Hong Kong HK$30,000,000 — 100%  Leveraged foreign exchange dealing and
BREZNEERAR B5 30,000,000/ broking

BRANER S REL
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g Notes to Financial Statements

ISR M

31 December 2016
ZE-NFF=ZA=+—H

I.  Corporate and Group Information (continued)

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries as at 31 December 2016 are as

follows: (continued)

Note 1: During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group has incorporated
the entity in order to distribute research reports in Singapore.
Note 2: The Group considers that it has the ability to govern the financial and

operating policies of the entity as the Group has the power to appoint

or remove the majority of the members of its board of directors.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in the
opinion of the directors, principally affected the results for the year or
formed a substantial portion of the net assets of the Group. To give
details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors, result

in particulars of excessive length.

These financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by

the Board of Directors on 17 February 2017.

2.1 Basis of Preparation

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") (which include
all applicable HKFRSs, Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs")
and Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“HKICPA"), accounting principles generally
accepted in Hong Kong and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
They have been prepared under the historical cost convention, except
for financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss, debt securities in issue designated as at fair value through profit
or loss and derivative financial instruments which have been measured

at fair value.

During the current year, management assessed the presentation of
certain items in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income. Accordingly the performance fee expenses,
other commission expenses and net impairment charges are included
in other operating expenses. The comparative figures have been
reclassified to conform to the current year's presentation. There is
neither any effect on the profit or loss for the year in the comparative
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income nor the net assets in the comparative consolidated statement

of financial position.

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars and all
values are rounded to the nearest thousand except when otherwise

stated.

e
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Notes to Financial Statements

IR M

31 December 2016
—E-ANFFtZH=+—H

2.1 Basis of Preparation (continued)
Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements
of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the
“Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2016. A subsidiary is an
entity (including a structured entity), directly or indirectly, controlled
by the Company. Control is achieved when the Group is exposed, or
has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee
and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the
investee (i.e., existing rights that give the Group the current ability to
direct the relevant activities of the investee).

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a majority
of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group considers all
relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has power
over an investee, including:

(@)  the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of the
investee;

(b)  rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and
(c) the Group's voting rights and potential voting rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the same
reporting period as the Company, using consistent accounting policies.
The results of subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which the
Group obtains control, and continue to be consolidated until the date
that such control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income are
attributed to the owners of the parent of the Group and to the non-
controlling interests, even if this results in the non-controlling interests
having a deficit balance. All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity,
income, expenses and cash flows relating to transactions between
members of the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if
facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or
more of the three elements of control described above. A change in
the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is
accounted for as an equity transaction.

2.1
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Notes to Financial Statements

ISR M

31 December 2016
ZE-NFF=ZA=+—H

2.2 Changes in Accounting Policies and Disclosures

(a)

The Group has adopted the following accounting policy relating to
perpetual securities for the first time for this year:

Perpetual securities are classified as equity if they are non-
redeemable, or redeemable only at the issuer’s option, and the
issuer has the option to defer any distribution. Distribution to
holders of perpetual securities classified as equity is recognised
as distribution within equity.

The Group has adopted the following new and revised HKFRSs
for the first time for the current year's financial statements:

Amendments to HKFRS 10,
HKFRS 12 and HKAS 28
(2011)

Investment Entities: Applying the
Consolidation Exception

Amendments to HKFRS 11 Accounting for Acquisitions of
Interests in Joint Operations

Regulatory Deferral Accounts

Disclosure Initiative

Clarification of Acceptable Methods

of Depreciation and Amortisation

HKFRS 14

Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS 16
and HKAS 38

Amendments to HKAS 16
and HKAS 41

Agriculture: Bearer Plants

Amendments to HKAS 27 Equity Method in Separate Financial

(2011) Statements
Annual Improvements Amendments to a number of
HKFRS 2012-2014 Cycle HKFRSs
o =

—“ﬂ - 3 £ >
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Notes to Financial Statements

IR M

31 December 2016
—E-ANFFtZH=+—H

2.2 Changes in Accounting Policies and Disclosures (continued)

(b)  The Group has adopted the following new and revised HKFRSs
for the first time for the current year’s financial statements:
(continued)

Except for the amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 and HKAS
28 (2011), amendments to HKFRS 11, HKFRS 14, amendments
to HKAS 16 and HKAS 41, amendments to HKAS 27 (2011), and
certain amendments included in the Annual Improvements 2012-
2014 Cycle, which are not relevant to the preparation of the
Group's financial statements, the nature and the impact of the
amendments are described below:

o Amendments to HKAS 1 Disclosure Initiative

Amendments to HKAS 1 include narrow-focus
improvements in respect of the presentation and disclosure
in financial statements. The amendments clarify:

(i) the materiality requirements in HKAS 1;

(i) that specific line items in the statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income and the
statement of financial position may be disaggregated;

(i) that entities have flexibility as to the order in which
they present the notes to the financial statements;
and

(iv)  that the share of other comprehensive income of
associates and joint ventures accounted for using the
equity method must be presented in aggregate as a
single line item, and classified between those items
that will or will not be subsequently reclassified to
profit or loss.
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Notes to Financial Statements

ISR M

31 December 2016
—E-ANFF+—A=+—H

2.2 Changes in Accounting Policies and Disclosures (continued) 2.2 St BRZERIKE 2
(b)  The Group has adopted the following new and revised HKFRSs (b) AEBEHAFEMNTBHREE
for the first time for the current year's financial statements: IREAN A T3] e 5] &8 B
(continued) BiREER : (&)
Furthermore, the amendments clarify the requirements pEobh - ZEEETEB R

BIRRE R BEREME
ER &N ERIIE PN

that apply when additional subtotals are presented in the
statement of financial position and the statement of profit

or loss and other comprehensive income. The amendments
have had no significant impact on the Group’s financial
statements.

Amendments to HKAS 16 and HKAS 38 Clarification of
Acceptable Methods of Depreciation and Amortisation

HERNAT  KEBE
A 48 12 o L 0 B A R
EEEAEARE -

BEGTENFE 16 RE
B EFHERIE 38 (B F]

) BFITE R A H AT
Eps

BEGTENBE IR RE
B et &R E 385 (1EF]
REBRRGTEAF16
SR BB ERFEIBHR
R B BN E R B
RaxB(REERE—®
7 ) EA MBI IR
B 15 A& B H FE R OB R
mAER o Eitt - WK
TERARTEDE  BE

Amendments to HKAS 16 and HKAS 38 clarify the principle
in HKAS 16 and HKAS 38 that revenue reflects a pattern
or economic benefits that are generated from operating
business (of which the asset is part) rather than the
economic benefits that are consumed through the use of
the asset. As a result, a revenue-based method cannot
be used to depreciate property, plant and equipment
and may only be used in very limited circumstances to
amortise intangible assets. The amendments are applied
prospectively. The amendments have had no impact on the
financial position or performance of the Group as the Group M WHEEFRER
has not used a revenue-based method for the calculation of PR A9 155 50 T =T P 28 8
depreciation of its non-current assets. FRRE - REEIEER
RIFER o L HEFT W& H
RNEB WM BIR AR
EEEATE  REER
SEIWREA W EFE
HIERBEENTE -
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Notes to Financial Statements

IR M

31 December 2016
—E-ANFFtZH=+—H

2.2 Changes in Accounting Policies and Disclosures (continued)

(b)  The Group has adopted the following new and revised HKFRSs
for the first time for the current year’s financial statements:
(continued)

° Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2012-2014 Cycle

22 B BERESEBNIEE#)

(b) AKREERAFENMBRERE
IRERA T AT R BRI BB Y

BRELER : (&)

. BAHBWEEA-F

——FE—

T—mFERY

HKFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held for Sale and
Discontinued Operations: Clarifies that changes to a plan
of sale or a plan of distribution to owners should not be
considered to be a new plan of disposal, rather it is a
continuation of the original plan. Accordingly, there is no
change in the application of the requirements in HKFRS 5.
The amendments also clarify that changing the disposal
method does not change the date of classification of the
non-current assets or disposal group held for sale. The
amendments are applied prospectively. The amendments
have had no impact on the Group as the Group did not have
any change in the plan of sale or disposal method in respect
of the disposal group held for sale during the year.
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2.3 Issued But Not Yet Effective Hong Kong Financial

Reporting Standards

The Group has not applied the following new and revised HKFRSs,
that have been issued but are not yet effective, in these financial

statements.

Standard Content

Amendments to HKFRS 2

Amendments to HKFRS 4

HKFRS 9

Amendments to HKFRS 10

and HKAS 28 (2011)

HKFRS 15

Amendments to HKFRS 15

HKFRS 16

Amendments to HKAS 7

Amendments to HKAS 12

Classification and Measurement of

Share-based Payment Transactions?

Applying HKFRS 9

Financial Instruments with
HKFRS 4 Insurance Contracts?

Financial Instruments?
Sale or Contribution of Assets

between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture?

Revenue from Contracts

with Customers?

Clarifications to HKFRS 15 Revenue

from Contracts with Customers?

Leases’®
Disclosure Initiative’

Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets for

Unrealised Losses’

i Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018
9 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019
& No mandatory effective date yet determined but available for adoption
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Notes to Financial Statements
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2.3 Issued But Not Yet Effective Hong Kong Financial

Reporting Standards (continued)

Further information about those HKFRSs that are expected to be
applicable to the Group is as follows:

The HKICPA issued amendments to HKFRS 2 in August 2016 that
address three main areas: the effects of vesting conditions on the
measurement of a cash-settled share-based payment transaction; the
classification of a share-based payment transaction with net settlement
features for withholding a certain amount in order to meet the
employee’s tax obligation associated with the share-based payment;
and accounting where a modification to the terms and conditions of a
share-based payment transaction changes its classification from cash-
settled to equity-settled. The amendments clarify that the approach
used to account for vesting conditions when measuring equity-
settled share-based payments also applies to cash-settled share-
based payments. The amendments introduce an exception so that a
share-based payment transaction with net share settlement features
for withholding a certain amount in order to meet the employee’s tax
obligation is classified in its entirety as an equity-settled share-based
payment transaction when certain conditions are met. Furthermore,
the amendments clarify that if the terms and conditions of a cash-
settled share-based payment transaction are modified, with the result
that it becomes an equity-settled share-based payment transaction, the
transaction is accounted for as an equity-settled transaction from the
date of the modification. The Group expects to adopt the amendments
from 1 January 2018. The amendments are not expected to have any
significant impact on the Group's financial statements.
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Issued But Not Yet Effective Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (continued)

In September 2014, the HKICPA issued the final version of HKFRS
9, bringing together all phases of the financial instruments project to
replace HKAS 39 and all previous versions of HKFRS 9. The standard
introduces new requirements for classification and measurement,
impairment and hedge accounting. The Group expects to adopt HKFRS
9 from 1 January 2018. During 2016, the Group performed a high-level
assessment of the impact of the adoption of HKFRS 9. This preliminary
assessment is based on currently available information and may be
subject to changes arising from further detailed analyses or additional
reasonable and supportable information being made available to the
Group in the future. The expected impacts arising from the adoption of
HKFRS 9 are summarised as follows:

Classification and measurement

(a)

The Group does not expect that the adoption of HKFRS 9 will
have a significant impact on the classification and measurement
of its financial assets. It expects to continue measuring
at fair value all financial assets currently held at fair value.
Equity investments currently held as available for sale will be
measured at fair value through other comprehensive income
as the investments are intended to be held for the foreseeable
future and the Group expects to apply the option to present
fair value changes in other comprehensive income. Gains and
losses recorded in other comprehensive income for the equity
investments cannot be recycled to profit or loss when the
investments are derecognised.
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Notes to Financial Statements
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2.3 Issued But Not Yet Effective Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (continued)

(b) Impairment

HKFRS 9 requires an impairment on debt instruments recorded
at amortised cost or at fair value through other comprehensive
income, lease receivables, loan commitments and financial
guarantee contracts that are not accounted for at fair value
through profit or loss under HKFRS 9, to be recorded based
on an expected credit loss model either on a twelve-month
basis or a lifetime basis. The Group expects to apply the
simplified approach and record lifetime expected losses that are
estimated based on the present value of all cash shortfalls over
the remaining life of all of its trade and other receivables. The
Group will perform a more detailed analysis which considers
all reasonable and supportable information, including forward-
looking elements, for estimation of expected credit losses on its
trade and other receivables upon the adoption of HKFRS 9.

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 (2011) address an
inconsistency between the requirements in HKFRS 10 and in HKAS
28 (2011) in dealing with the sale or contribution of assets between an
investor and its associate or joint venture. The amendments require a
full recognition of a gain or loss when the sale or contribution of assets
between an investor and its associate or joint venture constitutes a
business. For a transaction involving assets that do not constitute a
business, a gain or loss resulting from the transaction is recognised
in the investor's profit or loss only to the extent of the unrelated
investor’s interest in that associate or joint venture. The amendments
are to be applied prospectively. The previous mandatory effective date
of amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 (2011) was removed by the
HKICPA in January 2016 and a new mandatory effective date will be
determined after the completion of a broader review of accounting for
associates and joint ventures. However, the amendments are available
for application now.
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Issued But Not Yet Effective Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (continued)

HKFRS 15 establishes a new five-step model to account for revenue
arising from contracts with customers. Under HKFRS 15, revenue
is recognised at an amount that reflects the consideration to which
an entity expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring goods
or services to a customer. The principles in HKFRS 15 provide a
more structured approach for measuring and recognising revenue.
The standard also introduces extensive qualitative and quantitative
disclosure requirements, including disaggregation of total revenue,
information about performance obligations, changes in contract asset
and liability account balances between periods and key judgements
and estimates. The standard will supersede all current revenue
recognition requirements under HKFRSs. In June 2016, the HKICPA
issued amendments to HKFRS 15 to address the implementation
issues on identifying performance obligations, application guidance
on principal versus agent and licences of intellectual property, and
transition. The amendments are also intended to help ensure a more
consistent application when entities adopt HKFRS 15 and decrease
the cost and complexity of applying the standard. The Group expects
to adopt HKFRS 15 on 1 January 2018. During the year ended 31
December 2016, the Group performed a preliminary assessment on
the impact of the adoption of HKFRS 15.
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2.3 Issued But Not Yet Effective Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (continued)

HKFRS 16 replaces HKAS 17 Leases, HK(IFRIC)-Int 4 Determining
whether an Arrangement contains a Lease, HK(SIC)-Int 15 Operating
Leases - Incentives and HK(SIC)-Int 27 Evaluating the Substance of
Transactions Involving the Legal Form of a Lease. The standard sets
out the principles for the recognition, measurement, presentation
and disclosure of leases and requires lessees to recognise assets
and liabilities for most leases. The standard includes two recognition
exemptions for lessees — leases of low-value assets and short-term
leases. At the commencement date of a lease, a lessee will recognise
a liability to make lease payments (i.e., the lease liability) and an asset
representing the right to use the underlying asset during the lease term
(i.e., the right-of-use asset). The right-of-use asset is subsequently
measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment
losses unless the right-of-use asset meets the definition of investment
property in HKAS 40. The lease liability is subsequently increased
to reflect the interest on the lease liability and reduced for the lease
payments. Lessees will be required to separately recognise the
interest expense on the lease liability and the depreciation expense on
the right-of-use asset. Lessees will also be required to remeasure the
lease liability upon the occurrence of certain events, such as change in
the lease term and change in future lease payments resulting from a
change in an index or rate used to determine those payments. Lessees
will generally recognise the amount of the remeasurement of the lease
liability as an adjustment to the right-of-use asset. Lessor accounting
under HKFRS 16 is substantially unchanged from the accounting
under HKAS 17. Lessors will continue to classify all leases using the
same classification principle as in HKAS 17 and distinguish between
operating leases and finance leases. The Group expects to adopt
HKFRS 16 on 1 January 2019 and is currently assessing the impact of
HKFRS 16 upon adoption.
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Issued But Not Yet Effective Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (continued)

Amendments to HKAS 7 require an entity to provide disclosures that
enable users of financial statements to evaluate changes in liabilities
arising from financing activities, including both changes arising from
cash flows and non-cash changes. The amendments will result in
additional disclosure to be provided in the financial statements. The
Group expects to adopt the amendments from 1 January 2017.

Amendments to HKAS 12 were issued with the purpose of addressing
the recognition of deferred tax assets for unrealised losses related to
debt instruments measured at fair value, although they also have a
broader application for other situations. The amendments clarify that
an entity, when assessing whether taxable profits will be available
against which it can utilise a deductible temporary difference, needs to
consider whether tax law restricts the sources of taxable profits against
which it may make deductions on the reversal of that deductible
temporary difference. Furthermore, the amendments provide guidance
on how an entity should determine future taxable profits and explain
the circumstances in which taxable profit may include the recovery of
some assets for more than their carrying amount. The Group expects
to adopt the amendments from 1 January 2017.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Fair value measurement

The Group measures its financial assets and financial liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss, debt securities in issue designated as at
fair value through profit or loss and derivative financial instruments,
fund investments, debt investments and equity investments at fair
value at the end of each reporting period. Fair value is the price that
would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement
date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that
the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place
either in the principal market for the asset or liability, or in the absence
of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset
or liability. The principal or the most advantageous market must be
accessible by the Group. The fair value of an asset or a liability is
measured using the assumptions that market participants would use
when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act
in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account
a market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using
the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market
participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the
circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure
fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and
minimising the use of unobservable inputs.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Fair value measurement (continued)

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in
the financial statements are categorised within the fair value hierarchy,
described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant
to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 - based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active

markets for identical assets or liabilities
Level 2 - based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is observable, either directly
or indirectly
based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is unobservable

Level 3 -

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements
on a recurring basis, the Group determines whether transfers have
occurred between levels in the hierarchy by reassessing categorisation
(based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 2.4 SEEERBME )
Impairment of non-financial assets FEMEERE
Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual impairment WEDRBREELRNE  EY

testing for an asset is required (other than financial assets), the asset’s
recoverable amount is estimated. An asset’s recoverable amount is
the higher of the asset’s or cash-generating unit’s value in use and its
fair value less costs of disposal, and is determined for an individual
asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely
independent of those from other assets or groups of assets, in which
case the recoverable amount is determined for the cash-generating
unit to which the asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount of an
asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using
a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the
time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. An impairment
loss is charged to profit or loss in the period in which it arises in those
expense categories consistent with the function of the impaired asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period as to
whether there is an indication that previously recognised impairment
losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If such an indication
exists, the recoverable amount is estimated. A previously recognised
impairment loss of an asset is reversed only if there has been a change
in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount of that
asset, but not to an amount higher than the carrying amount that would
have been determined (net of any depreciation) had no impairment
loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal of such
an impairment loss is credited to profit or loss in the period in which it
arises.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses. The cost of an item of
property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price and any
directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working condition
and location for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and equipment
have been put into operation, such as repairs and maintenance, is
normally charged to profit or loss in the period in which it is incurred. In
situations where the recognition criteria are satisfied, the expenditure
for a major inspection is capitalised in the carrying amount of the
asset as a replacement. Where significant parts of property, plant
and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Group
recognises such parts as individual assets with specific useful lives and
depreciates them accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off the
cost of each item of property, plant and equipment to its residual value
over its estimated useful life. The principal annual rates used for this
purpose are as follows:

Shorter of the
remaining lease
term and the useful

Leasehold land under finance leases life of the buildings

Buildings 25-40 years
Leasehold improvements 3 years
Office equipment 3 years
Furniture and fixtures 3 years
Motor vehicles 3 years
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation (continued)

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different
useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a reasonable basis
among the parts and each part is depreciated separately. Residual
values, useful lives and the depreciation method are reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate, at least at each financial year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including any significant part
initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or
loss on disposal or retirement recognised in profit or loss in the year the
asset is derecognised is the difference between the net sales proceeds
and the carrying amount of the relevant asset.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets are measured on initial recognition at cost. The useful
lives of intangible assets are assessed to be either finite or indefinite.
Intangible assets with finite lives are subsequently amortised over the
useful economic life and assessed for impairment whenever there is an
indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation
period and the amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite
useful life are reviewed at least at each financial year end.

Intangible assets, representing club membership and eligibility rights
to trade on or through The Hong Kong Stock Exchange Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”) and The Hong Kong Futures Exchange Limited,
with indefinite useful lives are tested for impairment annually either
individually or at the cash-generating unit level. These intangible
assets are not amortised. The useful life of an intangible asset with
an indefinite life is reviewed annually to determine whether indefinite
life assessment continues to be supportable. If not, the change in the
useful life assessment from indefinite to finite is accounted for on a
prospective basis.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
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Leases

Leases that transfer substantially all the rewards and risks of
ownership of assets to the Group, other than legal title, are accounted
for as finance leases. At the inception of a finance lease, the cost of
the leased asset is capitalised at the present value of the minimum
lease payments and recorded together with the obligation, excluding
the interest element, to reflect the purchase and financing. Assets
held under capitalised finance leases, including prepaid land lease
payments under finance leases, are included in property, plant and
equipment, and depreciated over the shorter of the lease terms and the
estimated useful lives of the assets. The finance costs of these leases
are charged to profit or loss so as to provide a constant periodic rate of
charge over the lease terms.

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of ownership
of assets remain with the lessor are accounted for as operating
leases. Where the Group is the lessor, assets leased by the Group
under operating leases are included in non-current assets, and rentals
receivable under the operating leases are credited to profit or loss on
the straight-line basis over the lease terms. Where the Group is the
lessee, rentals payable under operating leases net of any incentives
received from the lessor are charged to profit or loss on the straight-line
basis over the lease terms.

Investments and other financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss and loans and receivables. When
financial assets are recognised initially, they are measured at fair value
plus transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the
financial assets, except in the case of financial assets recorded at fair
value through profit or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised
on the trade date, that is, the date that the Group commits to purchase
or sell the asset. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or
sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within the period
generally established by regulation or convention in the marketplace.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their
classification as follows:

o Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss include
financial assets held for trading and financial assets designated
upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss.
Financial assets are classified as held for trading if they are
acquired for the purpose of sale in the near term. Derivatives are
also classified as held for trading unless they are designated as
effective hedging instruments as defined by HKAS 39.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried in
the statement of financial position at fair value with net changes
in fair value recognised in profit or loss. These net fair value
changes do not include any dividends or interest earned on these
financial assets, which are recognised in accordance with the
policies set out for “Revenue recognition” below.

Financial assets designated upon initial recognition as at fair
value through profit or loss are designated at the date of initial
recognition and only if the criteria in HKAS 39 are satisfied.

o Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active
market. After initial measurement, these assets are subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate
method less any allowance for impairment. Amortised cost is
calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on
acquisition and includes fees or costs that are an integral part of
the effective interest rate. The effective interest rate amortisation
is included in revenue in profit or loss. The loss arising from
impairment is recognised in profit or loss.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part
of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e.,
removed from the Group’s consolidated statement of financial position)
when:

° the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired; or

° the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from
the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash
flows in full without material delay to a third party under a “pass-
through” arrangement; and either (a) the Group has transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the
Group has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the
risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the
asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from
an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement, it evaluates
if and to what extent it has retained the risk and rewards of ownership
of the asset. When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially
all the risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred control of the
asset, the Group continues to recognise the transferred asset to the
extent of the Group’s continuing involvement. In that case, the Group
also recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and the
associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and
obligations that the Group has retained.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period whether
there is any objective evidence that a financial asset or a group of
financial assets is impaired. An impairment exists if one or more
events that occurred after the initial recognition of the asset have an
impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or the
group of financial assets that can be reliably estimated. Evidence of
impairment may include indications that a debtor or a group of debtors
is experiencing significant financial difficulty, default or delinquency
in interest or principal payments, the probability that they will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation and observable data
indicating that there is a measurable decrease in the estimated future
cash flows, such as changes in arrears or economic conditions that
correlate with defaults.

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the Group first assesses
whether impairment exists individually for financial assets that are
individually significant, or collectively for financial assets that are not
individually significant. If the Group determines that no objective
evidence of impairment exists for an individually assessed financial
asset, whethe